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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lorl A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 Hww.dhhs.nh.gov
Katja S. Fox
Director

70A

February 3. 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Bi-State Primary
Care Association, inc. (VC#166695-B001), Bow, NH to continue facilitating the delivery of
Inlegrated medication treatment to pregnant, postpartum and parenting individuals, by increasing
the price limitation by $600,000 from $3,941,692 to $4,541,692 and by extending the completion
date from September 29. 2024 to September 29, 2025. effective retroactive to September 30,
2024 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on Novembers, 2019, item
#10, and amended on January 22,2021, item #19, amended on September 15,2021, item #16J,
amended on June 29, 2022, item #23, amended on December 21, 2022, item #27, and most
recently amended on September 20, 2023, item #33.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive to avoid delays or gaps that would result in reduced or loss of
access and supports for individuals in need of these critical services. The Federal awarding
agency notified the Department on September 24,2024, of the availability of funding beyond the
contract's completion date of September 29, 2024. Due to the delayed notification from the
Federal awarding agency, the Department was unable to present this request to the Governor
and Council prior to the contract expiring. This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires
all amendments to agreements originally approved as sole source to be Identified as sole source.
The Department is evaluating these services and is requesting to extend this contract for one (1)
year to allow for the continuation of these critical services and prevent any disruption in care. The
Contractor has established professional and technical assistance relationships with the state's
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) and hospitals, which will allow the continuity of these
services in the targeted geographic areas.



Docusign Envelope ID; A338D28C-FB13-4A04-A5BD-09CA21B64F3F

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council
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'  The purpose of this request Is for the Contractor to continue to facilitate the participation
of FQHCs to provide medications for substance use disorder, and an array'of necessary supports
to pregnant, postpartum, and parenting individuals with opioid use disorder, along with their
newborn and infant children.

^ The Contractor will continue their role as a facilitating organization to support a minimum
of three (3) FQHCs with increasing theircapacity to provide and deliver comprehensive integrated
medications for substance use disorder services and supports. The Contractor will provide project
management, organizational support, and ensure compliance with the terms of the Agreement,
as well as State and Federal regulations and standards, for themselves and all subcontracted
sites. The FQHCs will provide integrated medications for substance use disorder, meaning that
not only will pregnant, postpartum, and parenting'people with opioid use disorder receive
necessary medications for substance use disorder, they will also receive additional targeted,
integrated services such as; obstetrical/gynecological care; neonatal abstinence syndrome care;
childbirth and parenting education; employment support and assistance with applying for and
obtaining benefits appropriate for pregnant, postpartum, and parenting people such as enrolling
in Medicaid; food and housing services; transportation; and childcare.

The Contractor supports providers in delivering comprehensive integrated medications for
opioid use disorder (MOUD) services and supports for the target population. Additionally, the

: Contractor will collaborate with local and regional public health and provider networks including,
but not limited to, the Doonvays and recovery community organizations to align and coordinate
substance misuse treatment and recovery support services'^

Approximately 75 individuals will be served between September 30, 2024, and September
29, 2025.

The Department monitors these services by reviewing monthly data reports and invoices.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, post-partum, and
parenting individuals in New Hampshire with opioid use disorder, and their infants and children,
may not receive the treatment necessary to achieve and maintain recovery, and may not receive
important parenting-specific services'and supports which could improve the mother's health and
wellbeing, as well as that of their infants and children. /

Area served: Statewide ^
Source of. Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN H79TI085759

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully s^mitted,

i\ Lori A. Weaver

'V Commissioner

The Department o(Health and Human Seruices' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve hemllh and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95^2.920510.25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT, KHS: BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, STR GRANT

100% Federal Fiinds, _% General Funds, _% Other Funds (Name of Source)

Vendor Name: Bi-Stale Primary

Care Association, Inc. Vendor# 166695.8001

Stale Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title . Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 •  $600:000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00

Sub Total $600.000.0C $0.00 $600,000.00

05.95.92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds, _% General Funds, _% Other Funds (Name of Source)

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 . Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $156,945.00 $0.00 $156,945.00

-  2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $300,000.00 $0.00 $300,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 - $522,374.00 $0.00 $522,374,00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 9207046 $174,124.00 $0.00 $174,124.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Re! 92057048 .$348,249.00 $0.00 . $348,249.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Re! 92057048 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $671,250.00 $0.00 $671,250.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $223,750.00 $0.00 $223,750.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $671,250.00 $0.00 $671,250.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $223,750.00 $0.00 $223,750.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057066 .  $0.00 $450,000.00 $450,000.00

2026 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057066 $0.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00

Sub Total $3,341,692.00 $600,000.00 •$3,941,692.00

Overall Total $3,941,692.00j $600.000.0(^ $4,541,692^

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #6

This Amendment to the Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant, Postpartum
and parenting Women contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 6, 2019 (Item #10), as amended on January 22, 2021 (Item #19), amended on September
15, 2021 (Item #16J), amended on June 29, 2022 (Item #23), amended on December 21, 2022 (Item #27),
and as amended on September 20, 2023 (item #33), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may- be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,541,692

3. Modify Exhibit A-Amendment #5, Scope of Services; Section,2.4., to read: |

2.4. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within 60 business days of the resulting
Agreement effective date to review contract deliverables, grant guideline, and
implementation for the resulting Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #5, Scope of Services; by adding Section 2.5., to read:

2.5. The Contractor must utilize the Department's closed loop referral system whenever
applicable to the services they provide for referrals between health and/or human
service providers within New Hampshire for referral management and client care
coordination. Utilization includes inputting information and data as necessary into the
Department's referral solution as part of the NH Care Connections Network to facilitate
referrals to participating providers, signing required Network Participation
Agreement(s), and obtaining a participant specific consent for services.

2.6. The Contractor must utilize the Department's admission, discharge, transfer, and
shared care insights solution whenever applicable to the services they provide for client
care coordination and management between health providers within New Hampshire.
Utilization includes inputting information and data as necessary into the Department's
admission, discharge, transfer, and shared care insights platform as part of the NH
Care Connections Network to facilitate referrals to participating providers and signing
required Participation Agreement(s) for the admission, discharge, transfer, and shared
care insights solution.

2.6.1. The Department's contracts with the closed loop referral and admission,
discharge, and transfer vendors incorporate the costs of developing and
maintaining the standards-based interface from which the Contractor may
choose to configure their systems to communicate securely with the
Department's NH Care Connections Network solutions. The Contractor may
choose to interface with the Department's closed loop referral 3f 3
admission discharge'transfer solution utilizing a Smart on FHIR or HL-l d

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
2/5/2025" .

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A06 Page 1 of 8 Date
v7.12.23
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interface process to connect individuals to health and social service providers.
The costs for the Contractor system or team to develop or utilize the
standard Smart on FHIR or HL-7 based interface are the sole responsibility
of the Contractor.

5. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #5, Scope of Services; Section.5 Data Collection and Reporting,
to read;

3. Data Collection and Reporting'

3.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with client-level, non-identifiable data that
supports contract deliverables. The Contractor shall ensure client-level, non-
identifiable data excludes information allowing the individual to be identified or
constructively identified. Constructively identified, means that by using the information
provided and what is reasonably and predictably available to a predictable recipient of
the information the individual could be identified. Vendor shall provide non-identified
data from which there is no reasonable basis to believe that the data used alone of in

combination with other reasonably available information, could be used to identify an
individual who is a subject of the information.

3.5. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with 42 CFR Part 2 and confidentiality
consent, notices, and requirements, as applicable to any data collected or reported.

3.6. The Contractor shall collect data on services provided by each Site through the
resulting Agreement to ensure progress towards program goals and deliverables. The

•  Contractor shall ensure data includes, but is not limited to:

3.6.1. Demographics and measures for all program participants, as identified by
the Department;

3.6.2. Number of people referred to or from Doorways, broken out by Doorway and
service; and

3.6.3. The number of additional supports and services provided, by type of service
and support.

3.7. The Contractor shall report all, if any, exceptions for individuals who do not attend
available training programs,

3.8. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department, on the 15th working
day of the following month, in a format and via a secure method approved by the
Department, inclusive of the Department-approved Closed Loop Referral platform, as
applicable. The Contractor shall ensure reports include client-level, de-identified data
identified above.

3.9. The Contractor shall report on required data points specific to the SOR grant, as
identified by SAMHSA over the grant period.

3.10. The Contractor may be required to prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond
to periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the
Department or SAMHSA including Pll.

3.11. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #5, Scope of Services; Section 9. State Opioid Response (SOR)

Bl-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor lnitials_

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL.01-A06 Page 2 of 8 Date
v7.12.23

InitW
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Grant Standards, to read:

9. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

9.1. The Contractor shall ensure they, and any provider which referrals are made to:

9.1.1. Only provide and/or prescribe medications for Opioid Use Disorder
(OUD), as clinically appropriate, that are approved by the Food and Drug
Administration:

9.1.2. Only provide medical withdrawal management services to individuals
supported by SOR grant funds if the withdrawal management services
are accompanied by the use of injectable extended-release naltrexone,
as clinically appropriate;

9.1.3. Ensure staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid are available
to assist individuals with public or private health insurance enrollment;
and

9.1.4. Comply with 42 CFR Part 2 as applicable and related to any referrals
and provider services.

9.2. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR
funds, have a.documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder
or Stimulant Use Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or are at risk for such.

9.3. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase,
prescribe, or provide cannabis or for providing treatment using cannabis. The
Contractor shall ensure:

9.3.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD.

9.3.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual or organization that
provides or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance
use or mental health disorders; and

9.3.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memorandums
of Understanding that receive SOR funding.

9.4. The Contractor shall utilize SOR funding, as needed, to ensure Naloxone kits
are available to individuals receiving services through this Agreement.

9.4.1. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall
provide a test strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior
to implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan
includes, but is not limited to:

9.4.1.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

9.4.1.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

9.4.1.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

9.4.2. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible individuals who:

9.4.2.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the
individual's primary care provider:

9.4.2.2. Have co-occurring substance use and mental health
disorders; or

9.4.2.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor lnitials_

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A06 Page 3 of 8 Date
v7.12.23
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prescribed regardless oHhe class of medication.

9.5. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who refuse to consent to Information

sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

9.6. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent to information

sharing with the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR
funding.

9.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded
vendors, as requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA
collection.

9.8. The Contractor shall comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH,
SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements.

7. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #5, Scope of Services; by adding Section 10, to read;

10. Government Performance Results Act

10.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Sites administer or coordinate the

administration of Government Performance Results Act (GPRA) of .1993 and
the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010 initial interview and associated follow-ups
at six (6) months and discharge for all individuals receiving program services.

10.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Sites provide individuals served with clear
guidance about the uses and disclosures of the information provided to
complete, the GPRA, and the use and disclosure of the Part 2 information or
other PHI required in order to complete the GPRA. The Contractor shall also
provide staff training regarding the confidentiality of the identifiable information
included in the GPRA.

10.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Sites provide or coordinate ongoing follow-up
and support of individuals engaged in services until a discharge GPRA interview
is completed. The Contractor shall ensure the Sites ensure:

10.3.1. Staff confirms a confidential means of communicating with
each individual engaged in services to provide or coordinate
ongoing follow up and support;

10^3.2. Contact with each individual is attempted during a time when
the individual would normally be available. Contact shall be
made in person, by telephone, or by an alternative method
approved by the Department, according to the following
guidelines:

10.3.2.1. If the first contact attempt is not
successful, a second contact attempt
shall be made no sooner than two (2)

business days and no later than three
(3) business days after the first
attempt; and

10.3.2.2. If the second contact attempt is not

successful, a third contact attempt
shall be made no sooner than two (2)

business days and no later than three
(3) business days after the second

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor lnltials_
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attempt.

10.3.3. Each successful contact shall include, but not be limited to;

10.3.3.1. Inquiring on the status of each
individual's recovery and experience
with their external service provider;

10.3.3.2. Identifying individual needs;

'  ' .10.3.3.3. Assisting the individual with
addressing identified needs.; and

10.3.3.4. Providing early intervention to
individuals who have resumed use.

10.3.4. When the follow-up identified .above results in a

determination that the individual is at risk of self-harm, the
Contractor shall proceed in alignment with their crisis
response policy and procedure; and

10.3.5. All efforts of contact are clearly documented in the
individual's electronic health record, or in a format approved
by the Department, and are available to the Department upon .
request.

I

10.4. The Contractor shall ensure the GPRA interviews are attempted by the Sites at
the following intervals:

10.4.1. At the time of intake or no later than seven (7) calendar days
after intake;

10.4.2. Five (5) to eight (8) months post^intake. The window for this
interview opens five (5) months after the intake interview; and

10.4.3. Upon discharge from the initially referred service.

10.5. The Contractor shall ensure completed GPRA data is entered into, the
Department-approved system by the Sites, at a minimum of the following
intervals:

10.5.1. At the time of intake or no later than seven (7) calendar days ■

after the GPRA interview is conducted:

'10.5.2. Five (5) to eight (8) months post intake; and

10.5.3. Upon discharge from the initially referred service.

10.6. The Contractor shall ensure the Sites document any loss of contact with
participants in the Department-approved system using the appropriate process
and protocols as defined by SAMHSA and through technical .assistance
provided under the SOR grant.

10.7. The Contractor shall ensure the Sites contingency management strategies are
utilized to increase participant engagement in follow-up GPRA interviews.
Contingency management strategies may include, but are not limited to, gift
cards provided to individuals for follow-up participation at each follow-up
interview. The Contractor shall ensure gift cards:

10.7.1. Do not exceed $30 in value, in accordance with federal
guidelines, set forth by SAMHSA; and

10.7.2. Are used solely to incentivize GPRA interview ca
[ gJA

Bl-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.
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and not used to incentivize participation in treatment.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as awarded on:

1.1. 09/30/2018, FAIN H79TI081685;

1.2. 09/30/2020, FAIN H79TI083326;

1.3. 09/23/2022, FAIN H79TI085759: and

1.4. 09/29/2024, FAIN H79TI085759.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedenfto Payment, Section 3, to
read: ■ .

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred with the,
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-13 Budget. Amendment #6.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5.1.3,
to read: .

5.1.3. Invoices shall not include unallowable expenses, as reference below:

5.1.3.1. SOR IV Notice of Funding Opportunity, page .31: FY 2022 State Opioid
Response Grants (smhsa.gov); and

5.1.3.2. SAMHSA's Standards for Financial Management and Standard Funding
Restrictions, page 36: FY 2024 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Application
Guide.

11. Add Exhibit B-12, Budget, Amendment#6, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Add Exhibit B-13, Budget, Amendment #6, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to September 30, 2024, upon
Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/7/2025

Date

—OoeuSigntd by;

j  iCUfA S.
EP9D05804C»344^.

Name: s. Tox

Title; p-j rector

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.

2/5/2025

Date

■Signed by:

-01A5e7E4C94345E:..
Name: c>eorgia-j. Maneras
Title: SVP, Policy and Strategy

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A06
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 7 of 8
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2/7/2025

—^DOCuSkgnAdby;

——— > 7«7Me44J>4U60... —

Date Name: ^anno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Bl-State Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A06 Page 8 of 8
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit B-12, Budget. Amendment #6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name; Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.

Budget Request for:

Facilitating Integrated Medication forOUD,
Postpartum and Parenting Women

Budget Period September 29. 2024 - June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10% .

Line Item ■. Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages 'i. $42,502
2. Fringe Benefits $6,375
3. Consultants ■ If,. ■ $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0
5.(a) Supplies - Educational .  , $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab .  . $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy ■  ,, $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical ; !? ' $0
5.(e) Supplies Office i , $582
6. Travel •t - ■ , $0
7. Software :■ , $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications 1  ■ i $0
8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) .  $0
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0.

Other (please specify) :! $0
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $388,095
Total Direct Costs 1  $437,554

Total Indirect Costs :  $12,446

TOTAL 1 - . $450,000

Contractor Initials;

C'^lnKUl

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A06 Date:
2/5/2025
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Exhibit B-13. Budget, Amendment #6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.

Budget Request for:

Facilitating Integrated Medication for OUD,
Postpartum and Parenting Women

Budget Period July 1, 2025 - September 29, 2025
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 10%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $15,619
2. Fringe Benefits $2,343
3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment '
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. L i ' . . $0
5.(a) Supplies - Educational ' .  $0

5.(b) Supplies- Lab I'i,- ' $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical 1  , , $0

5.(e) Supplies Office :, $259
6. Travel $0
7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications' $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) i  . $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) ■ $0
Other (please specify) $a

Other (please specify) .  ■ $0
9. Subrecipient Contracts $129,912

Total Direct Costs '  $148,133

Total Indirect Costs $1,867

TOTAL $150,000

Contractor Initials;

-initial

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL-01-A06 Date:
2/5/2025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1,.David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE

Association, inc., is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January

31, 1986. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 86710

Certificate Number: 000667.7069

%

Urn

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal ofthe State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

herebycertlfy that;
(Na'Tle. g th^lerted Offiwr of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secreta^/Officer of Bi-State.Primary CafejAssodatlon, !nc._..
(Corporation/LLC Name).

2. The following Is a .true copy of'a vote taken at:a rheeting via.electrohlc rrieansof the Board of Directors/
shareholders, duly called arid held on. JanuaryS; 2025/31 which a quorumdfthe Directprs/shareholdeis
werepresentandybtlhg.

VpTiDiThat Georgia J. Maheras, SVP Policy and Strategy (rriay list,mbre:than,dne
person).(NameandTrtleof-CpntractSignatOfY) r

is.duly authorized on behalf of _Bi-State Primai^Care Association, Inc. toenterintdcpntracts dr'agreemehts with
the State (Name of ebrporation/ LLCj

pf New Hampshireiand any of its lagencles or departments arid.further is authorized to execute any and ail
.dowiherits; agreements and other instrumerits, a~rid,ariy ameridmerits, revisions, or modifications thereto,
which rriay In his/her judgment be desiraWeor hecessaiy^^^^ purpose of this vote.,

■3.1 hereby ceftify.that said vote has not'been amended orrepealed and remainsin full force and effect as of
.•the date of tfre cbhtriac^contracfamendment to'which thls^ cfe^tlfiiate'fe.atta^ed, "Ptls.-authpWy was valid

:furthercertlfythatlt Is.understood-thattheState.ofNewHampshirewlU i^ly-bXtHis.Mi^ificdte^'aV^^^
that the person(s):ilsted*aboye currenflYbccupy the p;osit)Ori(s) indicated and thdtthey hdyefuiia^^
bind the coiporation.To the extentthatth'ere'areanyiirriits.on the.author^ of.any listed individOai to bind

*,:ailsuch,liriiitatlons are expressly stated hereh.

Dated;

ed Officer

Name:

Title; Co CEO ftWUH

\ .

:'-k

Ji#'
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE |MM/DOnnrYY)

6/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License # AGR8150
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

CONTACT
NAME:

Ert): (603) 622-2855 T-fic, no>:(603) 622-2854
info(^clarkinsurance.com

INSURERISl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAicm

INSURER A: Citizens Ins Co of America 31534

INSURED

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.
525 Clinton St

Bow, NH 03304

INSURERS :Allmerlca Financial Alliance 10212

INSURER C;

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES . CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

!NI>P
SUBR

vYvn POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E  OCCUR OBVA340840 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED • J  500,000

MED EXP /Anv one Derson) 5  5.000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GEr/L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
J  2,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

1

OBVA340840 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT J  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
TOS

mtm

BODILY INJURY (Per oerson) %

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aIj^s only

sc
A1 BODILY INJURY iPer ecddemi s

X X
PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Per ecddeniT

$

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LiAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE OBVA340840 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  1,000,000

AGGREGATE
,  1,000,000

DEO RETENTIONS s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY ^^
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE j j

I—i
ir yos. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPFRATIONS belwr

N/A

WKVA340821 7/1/2024 7/1/2025 .

y PER OTH.
^ STATUTE PR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
J  500,000

E.L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE
J  500,000

Fl rnSFASF-POllCYllMIT
,  500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Rtnurks Schoduie, may bo attachod II mora cpaea la roqulrad)

State of NH

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



525 Clinton Street
Bow, NH 03304

Voice;. 603-228-2830

Fax: 603-228-2464

Bi^tate Primary Care Association
61 Elm Street

Montpelier, VT-05602

Voice: 802-229-0062

Fax: 862-223-2336

Ser\tng Vermont & New I-Iampshi re

www.bistalepca.org

Vision

Healthy Individuals, families, and communities with equitable and quality health care for all.

Mission

Advance access to comprehensive primary care services for all, with
special emphasis on those most in need in Vermont and New Hampshire.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (collectively, the Association), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheets as of June 30. 2024 and 2023. and the related consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Association as of June 30. 2024 and 2023. and the results of their
operations, changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion . , ■

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
.'standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government'Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Association and to meet our other
ethical'responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. ' .

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the. consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. " '

j

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Association's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated
financial statements are available to be issued.

Maine • Nevy Hdmpshire • ,M.ass'dch_usetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizorki • Puerto Rico

berrydunnxom



Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary
\

.  ' ' 1 • •
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there.is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and majntain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. .

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness pf the Association's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed. -

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether. In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt«about-the Association's ability to continue as a going
.concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicat5"with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

-2-



Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule, of expenditures of federal awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal. Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The Information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling, such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to
the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
20. 2024 on our consideration of the Association's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Association's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

f 'PoaM^j 4-4-^

Manchester, New Hampshire
September 20, 2024

-3-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total currenf'assets

Investments

Deferred compensation investments
Operating lease right-of-use asset
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable arid accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related liabilities

Deferred revenue

Current portion of operating lease liability

Total current liabilities

Deferred compensation payable
Operating lease liability, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

2024 2023

$  1,768,700 $ 1,465,898
1,102,382 1,849,263 ^
122.038 104.838

2,993,118

1,466,638
226,082
68,248

441.140

3,419.999

1,398,618

209,276
111,749
478.475

$  5.195.226 $ 5.618.117

323,919 $
284,029
124,369
46.052

816,196

249,521
292,189
42,798

778,369

226,082
23.594

1,028,045

4.167.181

1,400,704

209,276

69.647

1,679,627

3.938.490

$  5.195.226 $ 5.618.117

The accompariying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Operating revenue
Grant revenue

Dues Income

Other revenue

Interest income

Total operating revenue

Expenses
' Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Subrecipient grant pass-through
Subcontractors for program services
Professional services

Occupancy
Other

Depreciation

Total expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses and increase in net
assets without donor restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year

Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year

$  6,411,502 $ 7,207,763
466,505

532,501
82.130

7.492.638

2,889,649
644,351

2,441,144

535,328
117,552

104,176
487,607

44.140

7.263.947

228,691

3.938.490

\ 431,186
487,070

52.854

8.178.873

2,722,923
581,738

3,245,824
497,255
94,718
108,134

482,405
37.612

7.770.609

408,264

3.530.226

$  4.167.181 $ 3.938.490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  228,691 $ 408,264

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation 44,140 37,612
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use asset 43,501 23,616

Decrease (increase) in the following assets;
Grants and other receivables 748,881 (833,159)
Prepaid expenses (17,198) (57,849)

(Decrease) increase in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (492,277) 382,932
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 34,508 (1,856)
Deferred revenue (167,820) (75,500)
Operating lease liability (42.7991 (22.9201

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 377.827 (138.8601

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (8,805) (28,102)

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,399,430 2,722,221

Purchase of investments (1.487.4501 (2.764.5201

Net cash used by investing activities (74.8251 (70.4011

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 302,802 (209,261)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1.465!898 1.675.159

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  1.768.700 $ 1.465.898

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Operating right-of-use asset obtained in exchange for new

$ $ 132.845operating lease liability

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-6-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Organization

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. (BSPCA) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in New
Hampshire. The BSPCA's mission is to advance access to comprehensive primary care services for
all, with special emphasis on those most in need in Vermont and New Hampshire.

Subsidiary \

Center for Primary Health Care Solutions, LLC (CPHCS) is a limited liability company formed pursuant
to the New Hampshire Limited Liability Company Act. CPHCS's primary purpose is to provide
healthcare industry services and other industry-related consulting services. BSPCA is the sole member
of CPHCS.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of BSPCA and its subsidiary, CPHCS
(collectively; the Association). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted, accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which requires the Association to
report information in the consolidated financial statements according to the following net asset
classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management
and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. There were no net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

-7-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
f

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Income Taxes l

BSPCA is a public charity under Section 501 {c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As a public
charity, the entity is exempt from .state and federal income taxes on income earned in accordance
with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and federal income tax.
CPHCS'.is a limited liability company; however, for federal tax purposes, it is considered to be a
disregarded entity and, as such, CPHCS's income, expenses, losses, gains, deductions-and
credits are reported on BSPCA's information return. Management believes the services provided
by CPHCS are consistent with BSPCA's tax-exempt purpose and its revenue does not constitute
unrelated business income.

Management has evaluated BSPCA's tax positions and concluded that there are no unrelated
business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial
statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and money market accounts.

The Association maintains cash and cash equivalents accounts at several financial institutions.
The balances at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Association's balances may exceed
FDIC insurance. The Association has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk and certain accounts are subject to a
nightly sweep, which consists of high-yield savings accounts in other FDIC insured institutions with
no individual institution exceeding FDIC limits.

Dues Income

Dues income is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Association
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing member services. Dues income includes
membership dues. Membership dues are exchange transactions based on the value of the
benefits provided. The Association recognizes the membership dues over the membership period.
Membership dues are on a 12-mbnth basis and new member dues are calculated on a pro rata
basis through June 30 from the join date. Any portion of such dues related to the following fiscal
year is included in deferred revenue at year-end.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the arnount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible. A portion of the Association's
revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are
recognized as revenue when the Association has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific
contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are
reported as deferred revenue. The Association has been awarded cost reimbursable grants of
$7,168,579 that have not been recognized at June 30, .2024, because qualifying expenditures
have not yet been incurred.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

The Association receives a significant amount,of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, grants from DHHS
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other associations) represented
approximately 81% and 69%. respectively, of grant revenue.

Effective July 1, 2023, the Association adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326).'
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the
measurement of expected claims and credit losses ̂ on certain financial instruments. Topic 326
requires measurement and recognition of expected versus incurred losses for financial assets
held. Financial assets held by the Association that are subject to ASU 2016-13 include other
receivables. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on the Association's financial
statements.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments in equity securities with readily-determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investment income or

loss (including gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) is included in the change
in net assets without donor restrictions unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

k

Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market volatility.
As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will occur in the near
term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated,
balance sheets.

Operating Lease Riaht-of-Use Asset and Operating Lease Liabilitv

The Association determines if an arrangement is a lease or contains a lease at inception of a
contract. A contract is,determined to. be or contain a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of identified property, plant, or equipment (an identified asset) in exchange for
consideration. The Association determines these assets are leased because the Association has

the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit from and the right to direct the use of
the identified asset. Assets in which the supplier or lessor has the practical ability and right to
substitute alternative assets for the identified asset and would benefit economically from the
exercise of its right to substitute the asset are not considered to be or contain a lease because the
Association determines it does not have the right to control and direct the use of the identified
asset. The Association's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees
or material restrictive covenants.

In evaluating its contracts^ the Association separately identifies lease and non-lease components,
such as maintenance costs, in calculating the right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities for
its facility and equipment leases. The Association has elected the practical expedient to not
separate lease and non-lease components and classifies the contract as a lease if consideration in
the contract allocated to the lease component is greater than the consideration allocated to the
non-lease agreement.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Leases result, in the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheet. ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease
liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease; measured on a
discounted basis. The Association determines lease classification as operating or finance at the
lease commencement date.

At lease inception, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments over
the lease term. The ROU asset equals the lease liability adjusted for any initial direct costs,
prepaid or deferred rent and lease incentives. Topic 842 requires the use of the implicit rate in the'
lease when readily determinable. As the leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Association
elected the practical expedient to use the risk-free rate when the rate of the lease is not implicit in
the lease agreement.

The lease term may include options to extend or to terminate the lease that the Association is
reasonably certain to exercise. Lease expense on operating leases is recognized over the
expected lease term on a straight-line basis, while expense on finance leases is recognized using
the effective interest rate method which amortizes the ROU asset to expense over the lease term
and interest costs are expensed on the lease obligation throughout the lease.term.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and. minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets. The Association's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than
$5,000.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
as net assets released from restriction. Contributions whose restrictions are met in the same

period as the support is received are recognized as net assets without donor restrictions.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, management has
considered transactions or events occurring through September 20, 2024, the date that the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated
subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Association regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Association has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including
cash and cash equivalents, investments and a $750,000 line of credit (Note 5).

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year were as follows at June 30:

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,768,700 $ 1,465,898
Investments 1,466,638 1,398,618
Grants and other receivables 1.102.382 1.849.263

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures within one year $ 4,337,7^ $ 4,713,779

The Association had average days operating expense excluding subrecipient grant pass-through
expenses in cash and cash equivalents, less deferred revenue of 134 and 101 at June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively. The Association manages its cash available to meet general expenditures
following three guiding principles:

Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability:

Maintaining an average days cash and cash equivalents on hand of 90 to 180 days; and

•  Maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long-term
commitments and obligations will continue to be met, ensuring the sustaihability of the
Association.

3. Investments and Deferred Compensation Investments

U.S. GAAP defines fair value as the price that would be.received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants, and also establishes
a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable Inputs when measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy
distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical, assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The fair market value of the Association's investments and deferred compensation plan
investments are measured on a recurring basis. The following table sets forth the Association's
assets by level within the fair value hierarchy at June 30:

2024

Cash and cash equivalents
Exchange traded funds
U.S. treasury bills

Total

Level 1

$  6,361 $
220,478

Level 2 Level 3

1.465.881

$  226.839 $ 1.465.881 $.

2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Mutual funds

Exchange traded funds

Total

Level 1

$ 1,403,360 $
16,921

187.613

$ 1.607.894 $.

Level 2 Level 3

$.

Total

$  6,361
220,478

1.465.881

$ 1.692.720

Total

$ 1,403,360
16.921

187.613

$ 1.607.894

U.S. treasury bills are valued based on quoted market prices of similar assets.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

Land

Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

2024

$  50,000 $
659,382

63.164

772,546

331.406

2023

50,000
659,382
56.359

765,741

287.266

$  441.140 $ 478.475
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2024 and 12023

5. Line of Credit

The Association has a $750,000 unsecured revolving line of credit with a local bank payable on
demand. The interest rate on the line of credit is the Wall Street Journal Prime rate plus with a

'  5% floor (9.50% at June 30, 2024). There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit at June
30, 2024 and 2023.

6. Leases

The Association has entered into the following lease arrangements:

Operating Lease

The Association has an operating lease for office space through December 2025. This lease does
not contain renewal options. The lease includes a 3% per year escalation clause. Early termination
of the lease is generally prohibited unless there is a violation under the lease agreement.

Short-Term Leases

The Association has certain leases that are for a period of 12 months of less or contain renewals
for periods of 12 months or less. The Association does not include short-term leases within the
consolidated balance sheet since it has elected the practical expedient not to^include these leases
\vithin the recognized operating lease right-of-use asset and lease liability.

Lease Cost

Lease cost was as follows for the years ended June 30:

Operating lease
Short-term lease expense

Total

Other Information

Weighted-average remaining lease term:
Operating lease

Weighted-average discount rate:
Operating lease

2024

43,501 $
7.731

2023

23,616
26,254

51.232 $ 49.870

2024 2023

1.4 years 2.5 years

4.18% 4.18%
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

v

Future Minimum Lease Payments and Reconciliation to the Consolidated Balance Sheet

.  Future minimum payments due under the facility lease agreement are as follows for the years
ending June 30; ' .

$  47,928
23.592

.  71,520
1.874

69,646

' 46.052

$  23.594

2025

2026

Total future undiscounted lease payments
Less present value discount

Total lease liability
Current portion of lease liability

Lease liability, net of current portion
)

7. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. As the
Association is a service association, expenses are allocated betvyeen program services and
administrative support based on the percentage of program and administrative support wages,
respectively, to total wages, with the exception of subrecipient grant pass-through expenses and
subcontractors for program services which are 100% program in nature.

Expenses related to providing these services were as follows for the years ended June 30:

2024:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Subrecipient grant pass-through

Subcontractors for program services
Professional services

Occupancy
Other

Depreciation

Total ,

Program
Services

2,070,089

461,601
2,441,144
535,328
84,212
74,630

349,312
31.621

General and

Adrtiinistratlve

$ 819,560
182,750

-33,340

29,546

138,295
12.519

Total

2,889,649
644,351

2,441,144

535,328
117,552
104,176
487,607
44.140

$  6.047.937 $ 1.216.010 $ 7.263.947
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Program General and
Services Administrative Total

2023:

Salaries and wages $ '1,965,823 $ 757,100 $ 2,722,923
Employee benefits 419,988 161,750 581,738
Subrecipient grant pass-through 3,245,824 - 3,245,824
Subcontractors for program services 497,255 - 497,255
Professional services 68,382 26,336 94,718
Occupancy 78,068 30,066 108,134
Other. 348,273 134,132 ' 482,405.
Depreciation 27.154 10.458 37.612

Total $ 6.650.767 $ 1.119.842 $ 7.770.609

8. Retirement Plans
\

The Association offers a defined contribution plan to eligible employees. The Association's
contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 amounted to $113,282 and
$112,668, respectively. , ^

The Association has established a deferred compensation plan for eligible employees in
accordance with Section 457(b) of the IRC. The fair value of the assets and related liabilities for
employee contributions to the plan are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as deferred
compensation investments and deferred compensation payable, respectively.

9. Related Party Transactions

The Association's Board of Directors is composed of the senior officials of some of the members
of the Association. ,

The following is a schedule of services provided to and (by) these related parties for the years
ended June 30:.

2024 2023

Dues income $  194,609- $  181,915

Other revenue:

National government relations capacity building 110,500 110,500

Purchased services and event registrations 59,565 27,206

Subrecipient grant pass-through (1,567,858) (1,504,282)

Subcontractors for program services (45,001) (15,952)

Amounts due to the Association from these related parties as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 were
$39,990 and $12,035, respectively. Amounts payable to these related parties as of June 30, 2024
and 2023 were $177,228 and $341,105, respectively.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Federal Grant/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct:

Technical and Non-Financial Assistance to

Health Centers

Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural
Health Network Development and Small

Health Care Provider Quality Improvement-

Assistance

Listing
Number

93.129

93.912

Pass-Through
Contract

Number

Passthrouah:

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COVID-19 Special Programs for the
Agin9_Title III, Part C Nutrition Services 93.045 103502664/

Harvard University
Training in General, Pediatric, and Public
Health Dentistry 93.059

00FRF602PH9506A

158303.5116168.0102

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COVID-19 Immunization Cooperative
Agreements 93.268 102-500731/90023210

State of Vermont, Department of Health
COVID-19 Imrhunization Cooperative

93,268 03420-09991

Amount

Total Passed

Federal Through to
Expenditures Sub-recipients

$  1,873,713 $

357,185

298,604

134,105

617,494

135,000

147,748

64,957

611,444

Total AL 93.268 752,494 611,444

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COVID-19 Activities to Support State, Tribal,
Local and Territorial (STLT) Health
Department Response to Public Health or
Healthcare Crises 93.391 102-500731/90577100 588,490 588,490

State of Vermont Department of Health
COVID-19 Activities to Support State, Tribal,
Local and Territorial (STLT) Health
Department Response to Public Health or
Healthcare Crises 93391 03420-09746 45,045

Total AL 93.391 633,535 588,490

State of Vermont Department of Health
Improving the Health of Americans through
Prevention and Management of Diabetes
and Heart Disease and Stroke 93.426 03420-10023 12,568

Community Health Access Network
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New
and Expanded Services Under the Health
Center Program 93.527 N/A 318,051

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Concluded)

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Federal Grant/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

Assistance

Listing
Number

Pass-Through

Contract

Number

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passthrouah:

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Assistance Program 93,778 102-500731/

90075001 & 90072009

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 102-500731/47000144

Total AL 93.778

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Opiotd STR 93.788 074-500585/92057058

State of Vermont Department of Health
Cooperative Agreements for State-based
Diabetes Control Programs and Evaluation
of Surveillance Systems 93.988 03420-10076

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Maternal and Child Health Services Block

Grant to the States 93.994 102-500731/90080001

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. Department of the Treasury
Passthrough:

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COVlD-19 Coronavirus State And Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds 21.027 102-500731/
00FRF602PH9540A

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards, All Programs

Amount

Total Passed

Federal Through to
Expenditures Sub-recipients

22,307

42,095

64.402

755,406

8,265

11,817

5,220,145

413,574

702,806

2,115,445

308,533

$  5,633,719 $ 2,423,978

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

^  Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2024

1. Summary of Sionificant Accounting Policies

'  ( ^

Expenditures reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. De MInlmIs Indirect Cost Rate

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (collectively, the Association) has not
elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. Basis of Presentation ,

The Schedule includes'the federal grant activity of the Association. The information in this
• Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Association, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the
Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care
Association. Inc. and Subsidiary (collectively, the Association), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as of June 30, 2024, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 20, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Association's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association's Internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when, the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material, weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
rnisstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Maine • New Hampshire • Mdssqcliusetia • Cphnectlcut • WestVirgihId • Arizona • Puerto Rico
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Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary,

Report on Compliance and Other Matters ^

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association's consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not.to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire-
September 20. 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's (collectively,, the
Association) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in
the Office of Management and Budget's Compliance'Supplement \ha\ could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Association's major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Association complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of the Association, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for
each of the major federal programs. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Association's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Association's federal programs.
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Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Association's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Association's compliance with the requirements
of each of the major federal programs as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Association's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Association's internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perforrning their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiericy, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
September 20. 2024

-23-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Section 1. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency{ies) identified that are not

considered to be. material \A/eakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness{es) identified:
Significant deficiency{ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness{es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Unmodified

□ Yes 0 No

□ Yes 0 None reported

□ Yes 0' No

□  Yes 0

□  Yes 0

No

None reported

Unmodified

□  Yes 0 No

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Listing Number

93.391

93.788
21.027

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

COVID-19 Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local and Territorial
(STLT) Health Department Response to Public Health or

'Healthcare Crises
Opioid STR >
COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between .Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? .

Section 2. Financial Statement Findings

None

Section 3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

$750,000

0  Yes □ No
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James A. Zibailo
Responsible for creating, sustaining, and improving the support infrastructure necessary for day-to-day
operations of the firm including HR, IT, and Facilities

• Worked with firm leadership to develop and execute hiring plan
- Developed more formalized HR process for hiring

•  Developed and executed training program for new employees
•  Supervised all administrative staff

• . Managed all facilities related issues within firm.

Manager 2006- 2008

•  Assisted in building Beacon's health care practice

•  Performed the role of Project Manager/team leader, managing all aspects of client engagements

•  Contributed to building long-term relationships and developing new business with existing clients
•  Served as a mentor to junior firm members

Bi-State Primarv Care Association 2004-2006

Program Manager - Community Development Concord, NH

• Worked with Communities in early stages of community change

•  Assisted in the development of new health care deliveiy sites in medically underserved areas
•  Coordinated federal chronic health care quality improvement initiative in Mew Hampshire and Vermont

•  Reviewed grants for the US Department of Health and Flunian Services, Bureau of Primar)' Health Care

The Beacon Group 2002-2003

Consultant Portsmouth, NH

•  PerfoiTned research and analysis on multiple projects across various industries and business functions

•  Executed rigorous analyses of findings and assisted in the writing and presentation of project deliverables

New Harfipshire Department of Health and Human Services 1998-2002

Health Planning Analyst/Research Associate Concord, NH

•  Supported the Office's health policy and planning functions through directed research and analysis
•  Compiled and prepared raw data and statistical reports

EDUCATION:

University of Southern Maine, Muskie School of Public Service Portland, ME
•  Masters Degree - All but Capstone Project complete
•  Program: Public Policy and Management
•  Track of Study: Policy Analysis

Universitj'of New Hampshire Durham, NH

•  BS Degree, 1999

•  Major: Health Management and Policy

•  Focus on Public Health and Health Policy

ADDITIONAL SKILLS:

•  Communication skills, Computer skills, Critical thinking. Facilitation, Time management and Perfomiing Arts

REFERENCES:

•  Available upon request

2of2



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Bi-State Primary Care Association

NAME

;! ■!

JOB TITLE L
!

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL SALARY

James Zibailo Director, Community Health Systems $10,778.00 $114,382.06

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

< $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ^
DEP^TMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Diy/SIONFORBEHAy/qRALHEA^ '

Lort A.Weiver lW PLEASAf<T STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
CommlssJoncf 603^271-9544 l-W0^52-3345Ext: 0544

' Fax:.60347l-4332 TDD Acc«s: 1:^00-735-2964 www.<!hhi,oh.goy

iDIrcctor

September 5,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sunuriu
and the Honorable .Council

State House
Cpncprdl.New HampshlreiOSSOl

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health^and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
ito einter into a SPIe Source amendment to an existing contract vyith Bi-State Primary Carie
Assoclatibn, Inc. ;(VG# t66695TB00|j. :Bow,,NH to continue facilitating th^ delivery of integrated,
imedicalion'treatment to pregnant^postpartum and parentlhg individuals, by Increasing the price"
limitation by $895,000 frdm-$3.046;692 to $3,941,692 and by extending'thecornpletion.date from
September 20. 2023 to September 29, 2024, effective September 29. 2023, upon Governor and
Council approval: 100%'Federal Funds.

The original confract'Was appro by. Governor and Council on Novemt^r 6, 2019, Item
i#10. arid amended ori.Janu^ ltem;#19, amended on September 15,2Q21, item i#l6J,
arriended on June 29, 2022, item #23.vand most recently amended on December 21, 2022, item
mj: '

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANAtlON

This request is Sole Source because MOP ,150 requires all amendments to agreernents:
pifeyiOusjyi'apprpved as sole source to be identified as'sole source. Additionaliyi the Department
is seeking te extdnd the coritract:tte^ the cpmpletlon date and there are no renewal options,
-available, Bi-State Primary Care Association {Contractor) was identified as the organization for
this scope of work based on their rotes and well-established professional and technical assistance.
Teiati'bnships vyith the Statb^s Feddraily Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) and hospitals, which
;will allpvv sen/ices ip b.e estaW and efficieritly.in the targeted geographic areas.

the.purppse of this request is for the Contractor to cpntlnae to fadiitate'the participatiori.
of Federally Qualified'Health Centers (FQHCs) to provide medications for substance use disorder
(MSUD), and an array of necessdry supports to pregnant, postpartum, arid parenting individuals
with opipid use disprder (Qljo),- along with their riev^prri .and Infant children.

The Contractor ivill.cohtinue ItsTole as a facjiitating orgahizalion to support a rniriimum of
'three (3) subcontracted iFQHCs to increase their capacity to provide and deliver comprehensive
integrated .MSUD seryices'and .supports. The Cprttractor, as the facilitating organization, vrill.
iprovide. rnanag^ orgaiiizatipnal support, and ensure cbrnpliarice.with the terms of
the Agreernent. as Well :as;State and Federal regulations and standa/ds, for thernselves and all
isubcontractedisites^ .



Hid Excellency; Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hor>oreble.Councll

Pago,2,pf 2

The subcontracted FQHCs will provide integrated MSUD, meaning that not only will
pregnant, postpartum, arid parenting people with OUD r^ive riecessary MSUD, they will also
receive additional targeted, integrated .services such as: pbstetrical/gynecpiogical care; Neonatal
Abstinence Syndrome care; .childbirth and parenting education; employment support and
assistance with applying, for and obtaining benefits appropriate for pregnant, postpartum, and
parenting people such as enrolling in Medicaid; food and housirig services; transpoctation; and
chitdcare. MSUD is the use of medications, in combination with counseling and t»hayioral
therapies, when necessary.

The Contractor will continue to support providers in delivering comprehensive integrated
MSUD services and supports for the target population. Additionally, the Contractor will collaborate
with local and regional public health and provider networks including, but not limited tq, the
Doorways and recovery commuriily organizations to align and coordinate substance misuse
treatment and recovery support services.

Approximately 75 Individuals will be served between September 29; 2023 and September
29, 2024.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, |x)St-partum. and
parenting individuals in New Hampshire vvith OJJP, and their infants arid children, may riot receive'
the treatment necessary to achieve and maintain recovery, and may not receive Important
parenting-specific services and supports which could improve the mother's health and wellbeing,
as well as that of their Infants and children.

Area served: Statewide..

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.788 FAIN's ,H79Tld816iB5.
H79T|683326, FAIN H79TI05759;;and TBD.

In the everit that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be:requested to support this program,

Respectfully submitted,

fv

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner"

Tht Deporlntent of HealUi.andJIunwn Struices'Mission i$ to join commuiii^s and famlin
■' in providing opportunitiei for cilixens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

fiscal details SHEET

'OS-95-92-920510'-25S90000 HEALTH'AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS;
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG ALCOHOL SERVICES. STR GRANT

IOOV0 Federal Funds

Vendor Name ' Bi-Slate Primary Care Association Vendor# 166695-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tide job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 92052559 .  $600,000.00 $0,00 $600,000.00

•Sub Total $6oo.ooo;oo $0.00 $600,000.00

65-95.92.920510.76400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR^U OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds -•

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title

i .

Job Number Current Amount
Increase'

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057040 '  • $156,945,00 ■ $0.00 $156,945.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prograrh Services 92057040 $300,000,00 $0.00 $300,000.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $522,374.00 $0.00 $522,374.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $174,124.00 $0.00 $174,124.00

2022' 074-500585 ;Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $348,249.00 $0.00 $348,249.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $50,000.00 $0.00 ■ $50,000.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance ' 92057059 $671,250.00 $0.00 $671,250.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $223,750.00 $0.00 $223,750.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance TBD $0.00 $671,250.00 $671,250.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance . .  TBD $0:00 $223,750.00 5223.750,00

Sub Total J $2,446,692.00 $895,000.00 $3,341,692.00

Overall Total! $3.046,692.001 SSgs.OOO.OOT $3.941.692.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

^  Page 1 of 1



DocuSign Envelope'lO: D049d6d2-B952-4845-8OC3-C1D117002C00

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment US

This Amendment to the Facilitating Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant. F'pstpartum
and Parenting Women contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
■and Human .Services ("State" or "Department") and' Bi:Slate Prirhary .Cafe Association. Inc. ("the
'Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an, agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Gbvernor and Executive Council
on November 6, 2019 (Iterh #10); as amended on January 22, 2021 (Item #.19), amended on September
15, 2021 (Item #16J), aniended on June 29. 2022 (Item #23), and as amended on December 21. 2022
(iterh #27); the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terrhs and conditions
specified in, the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain surns specified; and
Whereas, pursuant to, Form P'-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
:upon written agreement of the.partles and approval frorn the Govern'or.and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price ■limitation, and.
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

■ NOW THEREFORE, in 'consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follpws:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
September 29, 2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions' Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$3,941,692 .

'  3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A, Arfiendment #5.
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.^

5. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1, to
read:-

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance [Abuse and Mental. Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as awarded on:
1.1. 09/30/2018. FAIN H79TI081685;

1.2.^ 09/30/2020, FAIN H79TI083326:

1.3. 09/23/2022, FAIN H79TI05759; and .

1.4. Award date TBD. FAIN TBD pending receipt of the Notice,of Award from SAMHSA.
which is anticipated, to be effective 9/30/2023.

6. Modify-Exhibit B, Amendment #1. Methods.and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3; to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred, with the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

'Bi-State'Primary Care Association, Inc. A-S-1.2 Conlracldr Initials
'  8/31/2071

!SS^2020-BDAS-08-FACILr01-A05 Page 1 of 4 ' . Dale



OocuSign Envelope ID; b649^82-8952-4B45-eDC3-ClD117002C00

specified In Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-11 Budget. Amendment #5.

7. Modify Exhibit 8. Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 5,
Subsection 5.1, Paragraph 5.1.3, Subparagraph 5.1;3.1, tpadd Paris 5.1.3:1.9 through 5.1.3.1.11,
as.follows:

5.1.3.1,.9.; Promotional items including, but not limited to, clothing and cpmrnemorative items with;
". added logos for distribution to clients and the community, including but not limited to;

rnugs/cups.'fplders/fqlios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR 75.421(e)(3)

5.1.3.1.10. Direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in'
prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b

5.1.3.1.11. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypoderrhic injection of any illegal drug.

8. Add Exhibit B-10 Budget. Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein;

9. Add Exhibit B-11. Budget, Aniendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by.reference
herein.

Bi-Stale Primary Care Associallon. Inc.

SST2020.BDAS.08-FACiL-P1-A05

A-S-1:2

Page 2 of4

'DS

, ̂
Contractor initials

8/31/207y
Date



OocuSign Envelope ID; D0499682-B952-4845-6DC3-C1O117002C00

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective September 29. 2023, .upon-Governor and
Council approval.

IN witness'WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

■■ ^ State of New Hampshire .
Department of Health and Hurhan Services

8/31/2023

•Date

—D«<uSie<^•d bjr:

^oanmaniTiUi^a-

Titje: Director

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.

8/31/2023

Date

OocvSlgnad by:

CuTfio. AiAlunts
7OlMaygbewxae:

Name:Georgia Maheras

Title. svp_ Policy and Strategy

Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc.

SS-2020-BDAS-08-FACIL^1-A05

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been.Teviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

8/31/2023

DocuSigntd by:

Date. Name; Cuarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certif/that the foregoing Amendnient was approved by the Governor and Executive Comcil of
the State of Nevy Hampshire at the Meeting on: _'(date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE:

Date . Name:

Title:

Bi-State.Prirnary Care Association. ]nc.

SS-2020.BDAS-d8-FACIL-01-A05

A-S-1.2

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization for integrated Medication Assisted Treatment

^  for Pregnant and Postpartum Women
.Exhibit A-Amendment #5'

/  Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

'  1.1. The Contractor .shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
■m.eaningful access to, their programs and/or serv.ices within ten (10) days of the
contract effective dale. i'-;

■ ' -1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Qourt or federal or state court orders may have an impact,
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requLfements under this Agreement so as to,
achieve'compliance therewith.

.1.3'. For the purposes 'of this Agreement, the Departrherit has identified the ■
Contractor as a'Subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300. . '

2. Scope of Work ^
2.1. Program'Requirements

2.1.1. The, Coiitractbr'Shall enter into agreements with a piinirhum of three (3)
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) and/or hospitals, hereinafter

.referred to as Sites, to increase their capacity to provide, and to deliver
'Comprehensive, integrated medications for opioid use disorder (IMOUD)
services and supports for pregnant, postpartum, and parenting individuals
wjth opioid use disorders (OUD), and.their newborn and, infant children. The

. Contractor shall ensure:

2-1;1.1. Preference is given to FQHCs in Coos,,.Rpckingham, HjJIsborough,
Merrimack, Strafford, and Cheshire counties,'Vrhlch. are areas that
are not currently served by an organization under contract with the
Department to provide'medications for pregnant and parenting
individuals-. .

■2,1,1,2. Agreements with prospective Sites are submitted to the
Department for approval prior to execution.

,r. 2.1.2. The.Contractor shall provide project ma_nagemenj and program consultation,
to each Site.

2.1.3. The' Contractor shall support each Site to ensure they have
capabilities which' include, but are not limited to:

2.1.3.1. Enrolling .with Medicald and other third party payers.
2'r1.3.2. Contracting with managed care organizations and insurance

companies for MOUD and delivery of prenatal care.

Bi-Stale Primary'Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
8/31/2023

SS.2020-BDAS-08-FACIL.01-AOS Page 1 of 14. ... Date . . '
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>*< '

New Hampshire Departmentof Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization forlntegrated Medication Assisted treatment
for Pregnant and Ppstpartum Women

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

2.1.3.3. Havin'g a proper understanding of the- hierarchy of the billing
process including, but not limited to, alternative payment.models
for" addiction care.

2.1..4.;, The Gpntractor shall ensure, for themselves and subcontracted sites,
compliance with and adherence to the. State,. Opioid .Response Grant
Standards as specified in Section 9.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall ensure compliance, and support each site with
complying with confidentiality requirements, which includei but are not
lirnited to:

'2.1.5.1. Applicable federal and state laws.

2.1.5.2. HIPAA Privacy Rule. ' ^

2.1:5.3. 42C.F.RPart2..

2.2. Medications for Opioid Use Disorder (MQUD)

2.2.1. The Contractor shall work with Sites, as identified in Section 2.1.-1, to,
enhance their capacity to implement and vdeliver MQUD services and
supports. The. Contractor shall provide support which includes, but is not
limited to: ,

-  2-.2.1.1,. Establishing teams to deliver MQUD that inv.olye current staff, the
recruitment of new staff, and/or the development of formal

■" relationships wjth exterhal partners.
2.2.1.2. Providing Sites with info/mation on availalDle trainings tO'Support

initiating or expanding the capacity to deliver MQUD yyith approved
medications.

2.2.1.3. Providing assistance with identifying heeded modificatlohs to.
electronic health record (EHR) systems in order to collect and
report data elements, as required in Section ^.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall ensure each Site:

2.2.-2.1. Collaborates with local and regional Doorways, to include, but is
not limited to:

2.2.2.1.1. Accepting clinical evaluation results for level of care
placement from the Doorways upon referral of a client or"

^  upon intake in order to ensure that clients are not over-
evaluated.

2.2.2;1.2. Continuing reassessment of service recipients at.-.each
.  encounter.

Bi-Slate Pfimaiy Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A KAmendmen! #5 Contraclbr Initials
8/31/2023,

SS.2D20.BDAS-08-FACIL-P1-A05 Page 2 of 14 -Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization for Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment
for Pregnant.and Postpartum Women

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

2.2^2.1.3. Assisting participants vyith identifyihg, applying for, and
obtaining ancillary, non-clinical recovery support
services that reduce barriers, to a client's participation in
treatment or recovery, which may. include, but are-not
limited to seiVices identified in Subparagraph 2.3.2.2, as
appropriate. - i

2.2.2.1.4. pblaining naloxone kits for distribution to program
' ̂ ' participants and family members. ^

2.2.2.2. Provides MOUD sen/ices with fidelity to federal, state, and best
practice: recommendations as described . in the "Guidance

.  Document on Best Practices" -

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbh/bdas/documents/matguidancedoc.
pdf

2.2.2.3. Develops policies and practices related, but not limited, to: r-

2.2.2.3.-1. Evaluation and medical examination to verify that,
'  patients meet .criteria for opioid use disorders, are

appropriate for MOUD level of care, and determine the
appropriate medication in cases where an eya.luatipn
has not already been completed.

s  . '2.2.2.3v2; Induction procedures.
I

2.2.2.3.3. integration of behavioral health counseling.

2.2.2.3.4. Documentation of MOUD services.

2.2.-2.3.5. Urine drug testing.

2.2:2.3.6: Discharge from MOUD sen/ices.

2.'2.2.3.7. Billing procedures.

2:2.2.3.8. Preventing Diversion

2:2.2.3.9. Transition between levels of care as appropriate.

2.2.2.3.10. Utilizing, the State's Prescription , Drug Monitoring
Program (PDMP) database in accordance with State

.requirements.

2.2.2.4. Identifies at least one (1) provider to prescribe all FDA approved
medications. -

p  . 2.2.2.5. Provides ongoing supervision for prescrlbers, with access to
consultation frorh "experienced providers.

t  ■

2:2.2.6. Utilizes patient-centered educational materials regarding Qi£^fiose
prevention, such as the Subsjance Abusie and Ment^l^j^alth

BirStale Primary ;Care'Association, Inc. Exhibit A" - Amendment #5 Coniractdr Initials • •"
■  8/31/2023.

SS-202(>-BDAS-08-FAC1L-01-A05 " Page 3 of 14 Dale^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization for Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment
for Pregnant and Rostpartum Women

Exhibit A Amendment #5

Services Administration's (SAMHSA's) Opioid Overdose
Prevention Toolkit.

2.2.2.7. Provides interim CUD treatment services, when the necessiary
treatment services are .not available to the participant, within'forty-
eight (48) hours of referral. Interim services shall include, but are
not lirniled to Recovery Support Services (RSS) as needed by the

!  . client.

■  2.2.2:8. Develops collaborative .relationships" with external .partners that
offer services to pregnant women with CUD to,provide additional
services not available through the Site, including but not limited to:

2.2.2.,8.'1, MOUp services with^Methadone.

2.2.2.8'2. Intensive levels of behavioral health counseling not
'■ available at their agency.

2.2.2.8.3. Ancillary; non-rclinical recovery support .services that
reduce barriers to a" client's participation in treatment or
recovery, which may. include, services .identified in
Subparagraph 2.3.2.2, and supports end services

■v P.ffe/ed through the Poorways.
2-.2.2.9. Develops collaborative, relationships with Recovery Community

Organizations and other RSS partners to provide additional
services not available through the Site, including, but not limited to:,

2.2.2.9.1. Certified Recovery Support Workers.
■ ' 2.2.2.9.2; Medically Assisted Peer Recovery Support Groups or"

Peer Recovery Support Groups.
2i2.2.9;3'. Family Support Groups.

2.2.2.9.4; Parent Education and Training.
2.2.2.,.9.5, Referral to community-based programs to support

recovery.

. 2.3. Integrated Services and Supports

2.3.1. The Contractor shall work with the Sites, as identified in Section 2.1:1, to
enhance their capacity and to deliver integrated services a^nd supports for
prenatal and postparturti care, provide parenting and recovery support
services, utilizing evidence-based practices and curricula when available
and appropriate, in coordination with the MOUD services in Section 2.2.
including, but not limited to:

2.3.1.1 Obstetrical/gynecological (OB/Gyn) services. >—ds
2:3.'1i2. Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome (NAS) services. I

Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials "" • '
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,  2^3:1i3. Family Support Services. ;

2.3.1-.4. Resource/Employment specialists.

2.3.1.5. Case rtianagement/Care coordination.

■ ■ 2.3.1.6'. Childbirth education.

2'.3;.1.7. Parenting and personal development education groups, programs,
and activities, which integrate the parenting, education curriculum
with addiction treatment so Jhat participants have the opportunity
to learn about the impadt of substance use on family functioning
and healthy, child development.

2.3.1 ;8. Health education, including practices for safe storage of medication
and preventing diversio.n of medications.

,2.3.1.9. Supporting and mentoring leadership of group therapy, for
participating individuals.

*»

2.3.1.-10. Educational sessions to all pregnancy groups that include, but are
not limited to "The Period of Purple Crying," safe sleep practices
and car seat safety and are integrated with newborn nursery and
outpatient pediatric follow up.

,  -2.3,2. The Contractor shall ensure each Site:

,2.3.2.1. .Provides access to childcare support to participants that, allows
participants to participate in and receive care without distVactio.n.

2.3.2.2. Assists participants with identifying, applying for, and obtaining
benefits, programs, supports, and services appropriate for
pregnant, postpartum, and parenting individuals, including but not
limited to:

>

2.3.2.2.1. Social supports including, but not limited to access
and/or referrals to food, .housing, and childcare.

2.3.2.2.2. Recovery centers, peer support groups, and transitional
housing.

2.3.2:2.3. Behavioral health resources in the local community.

2.3.2.2.4. Transportation resources including, but not limited to:

2.3.2.2.4.1. Assisting participants to enroll in Medicaid
transportation services.

2.3.2.2.4.2. Developing a network of support to help
^wjth transportation needs.

•09

^ Oi
BhState Primary Care Asscxaation, Inc. txhibi! A - Amendmenl #5 Coniractor Initials,
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2.3.2.2.4.3. Identifying,resources to-help participant's to
attain a valid driver's license or an

.  affordable car loan.

2.3.2.3. Develops a Plan for Safe Care with birth attendants and the New
Hampshire Division of Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF), per

. NH RSA 132;10-e and RSA 132;10:f, for each infant affected by
prenatal drug or fetal alcohol exposure.

2.3.2.3.1'.. Plahhihg'and communication regarding the Plan for Safe
Care will.also involve other comrhunity agericy supports
including, but not limited to home .visitation, NH Women,

,  Infants "and Children Nutrition Program, housing, and
other services central to recovery.and parenting.

2.3.2.4. Cohtiriubus reassessment of participants for referral to the
appropriate level of care.

2.3.2.5. Obtains the necessary releases to ensure ongoing communication
and care coordination with entities involved in the participants'care
including child protective services, treatment-providers, home
visiting services, and pediatric providers. *

'2.3.2.6. Enables, participant choice in services, by utilizing available
resource's.

2.3.2."7. Has ongoing communication and care coordiriation with entities
involved in the participants' care including, but not limited to:

2-.3.2.7.1. Child protective services.

2.3.2.7.2. Treatment providers.

2;3.2.7.3. Home visiting services.

2.3;2.7i4. . Pediatric providers: '

2.3,2.7.5. i^ecovery Support Services,

2.3.3;' The Contractor shall assist Sites in engaging and collaborating with
local/regional referral networks and comrhunity partners to increase

■  awareness of' the program, align and coordinate services across
networks, and enable the program to be utilized to its greatest capacity.
These partnersMnclude, but are not limited to;

2.3.3.1. Regional Public Health'Networks.

2.3.3.2. Family Resource Ceriter(s).

2.3.3.3. Recovery Community Organizations.
•OS

Ok,2;3.,3:4, Doorways.

Bi-Slate Primary Care Association. Inc. , Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Cori'tractor initials
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2.3.4. The Contractor shall collaborate, with the Sites to develop and implement
,  outreach activities, which may include marketing designed to engage

pregnant individuals with an ODD in the community and promote this
program throughout their service areas. The Contractor and Sites are not
required to market themselves publicly as SUD treatment centers.. ■

2.3.5. the Contractor shall ensure meaningful input of consumers in program
assessment, planning, implementation;-and improvement.

2.3.6. The Cbritractor shall erisure patient-centered, effective, integrated ibare
and attention* to overdose prevention is provided by each Site by
employing educational rriaterials which include, but are not limited to:

2.3.6.1. Center for Disease Control (CDC) opioid prescribing guidelines.

2.3.6.2. SAMHSA's Opioid Overdose Prevention Toolkit.

;2.3.6.3- State-published Guidance Document on Best Practices: Key
Components for Delivering Community Based Medication Assisted
Treatment Services for Opioid Use Disorders in NH
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/bdas/documents/matguidancedo
c.pdO- « .

2T3.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with each Site -to^modify workflows and
electronic records processes to ensure screening and required ,data
',cpllectiph.

2.4. The Contractor shall meet.with the Department at a frequency and in a format
determined by the Departmeht, to review work plan progress, Site develppment,
and encountered or foreseeable issues.

it.

S, staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure each Site meets the minimum MOUD team staffing
^  requirements to pTovide the Scope of Services as follows;

3.1.^1. Provides access to at least one (1):

3.1.1.1;. Prescriber. *

3.1.1.2. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor or behavioral health
-■ ' prpvider with addiction training. -

3.1.'1..3'' .Obstetrician or midwife.

3,-1.1.4. Care coordinator.

3.1.1.5. Npn-clihical/administrative staff.'

3.1.'1.6. Certified,Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) -
3,1,2. Sufficient staffing fevajs that are appropriate for the services providecTanci

the number of clients served., I
Bl-Sfate Primary Care Associaliori, Inc. Exhibit A ̂  Amendment #5 Conlraclor Initials ^
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3.1.3. All. unlicensed staff, at each Site, providing treatment, education, and/or
recovery support services are under the direct supervision of a licensed

-  supervisor. ~ .

3.1.4. No licensed supervisor, at each site, oversees mor.e than eight. (8)
unlicensed staff, unless the Departrnent has approved an alternative
supervision plan.

3.2. The Contractor^shall ensure that unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery
support services must hold a minimum of a GRSW within one (1) yearof hire or
from the effective date of this contract, whichever is later.

3.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within one (1) month of hire
vyhen a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying
out this scope of services Is hired to work in the program., The Contract shall
provide a copy'df the resume of the erhployee, which clearly indicates the staff
member is employed by the Contractor, with the notification.

3.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department within wrjtiiig within fourteen (14)'
calendar days, when there is not sufficient staffing to perform all required

-ii services for more than one month.

4. Training

4.1. The Contractor shall:

4.1.1. Ensure the availability of initial and pn-going training resources to all Sites
including, but not limited to training for physicians, nurse practitioners, and
physician assistants.

4.1.2. Develop a training plan with each Site to train and engage appropriate staff..
Plans shajy be subrnitted to the. Department for approval prior to
implementation.

4.1.3. Ensure staff at all Sites receive confidentiality training pursuant to vendor
polidies and procedures in compliance with NH State administrative rules

^  and state^and federal laws. This includes, but is not limited to safeguarding
protected health' information, SUD treatment information, and any
individually identifiable patient information.

4-1.4. Participate in and ensure Sites participate in training and", technical
assistance activities, as directed by the Department,, to assist with the
MOUD planning, implemenlatipn, mpnitpring, and quality improvement, as
well as services and supports for pregnant, postpartum and parenting
individuals and' their newborn and infant children, as apprppnate,_ This
includes trairiing activities such as. but not limited to:

4.1.4.1. The Community of Practice for MOUD, as sessions are available.

■4,1.4,2. Project-specific trainings,
BhStale Prirhary Cafe Association, Inc. Exhibit A ~ Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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4.1.4.3. Ad .hoc communication with expert consultants oh MQUD clinical
care, ̂topics such as Hepatitis C Virus (HCV) and Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) pre'i/entioh, diversion risk mitigation,

V. v and other relevant issues. r:

4.1^5. "Ensure staff at each Site are trained on relevant topics which'may include,
but are not limited to:

4.1.5.1. Integrated care.

). 4.'1.5.2. ' Traumarinformed care and other - evidence based treatment
strategies as indicated.

4.1.5.3, MOyp best practices.

4.1.5.4. Care coordination..

4.1.5.5: RSS delivery best practices, including CRSW courses for
prospective Recovery Coaches.

4.1.5.6. Smoking Cessation.

,4.1.5.7. Motivational lnteryiewing.

4.1.5.8. Evidence-Based Practices such as Screening, Brief-Intervention,
and Referral to Treatment.

4.1.6. Cognitive behavioral therapy, dialectical behavior therapy, motivational
enhancement therap^y, rriiridfulness, and overdose prevention. , "

4.1.7., Collaborate^ith the Doorways torprovide training and logistics to all Sites
for the distribution of naloxone kits to participants and family members.

4.2, Ensure that personnel providing services,at each Site are licensed, certified,
and/or trained in the services being provided.

4;3. Ensure each Site rrialntains policies and procedures, and have'.required
employee training, at. least once per .year, in the areas of ethical conduct,,
.confidentiality, compliance, cyber security..and conflict of interest.

5. Data Collection and Reporting

5.1. The Contractor shall assist and ensure each Site collects, reports, and submits
de-identified, patient data, including, but hot limited to:

5". 1:1.^ Demographics and measures for all program participants, as'identified by
:the Department.

5.1.2. Number of people,referred to or from local and regional Dporvyays, broken
,out by Doorway;and service.

5.1:3. Federally required -data points specific to'this funding opportuoit^ as
identified by SAMHSA. •

Bi-Stale Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A-Amendment US • Contractor Initials ^
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5.1.4. The number of additional supports and services provided, by type of
service and support.

5.2. The Contractor, in cdllaboration. with the Department, will analyze and utilize
data coilected for prorndting quality improvement-efforts of this project.

Vf. ' 5.3. The Contractor shall report the data identified in Section 5 for all Sites combined.
as well as individually for each Site, to the Department on a mohthly basis in a
format approved by the Department by the fifteen (15) working day of the
following month.

'5:4. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad: hoc data reports,-. resp6h.d to
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deerhed necessary :by
the Department and/or Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA).

6. Critical Incidents and Sentinel Events

$.1. The Contractor shall report, and shall ensure all Sites report;

6.1.1. All critical incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible and
no more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor.agrees that:

6.1.1.1. "Critical incident" means any actual or alleged evenr or situation
that creates a significant risk of substantial or serious harm to
physical or mental health, safety, or well- being, including but not
limited to:

6.1.1.1.1. -Abuse;,

6,1.1.1.2.. Neglect;

6.1.1.1.3. Exploitation;

6.-1.1.1.4. Rights violation:

6:1,1.1.5. Missing person;

6.1.1.1.6. Medical emergency;

6.1.1.1.7. Restraint; or

6.1.1.1.8. Medical error.

6.1.2. All contact with law enforcement to the Department in writing as soon as
possible, and no more than 24 hours following" the incident;

6.1.3. AJlmedia contacts-to the Departtment in writing as soon as possible and no
hiore than 24 hours following the incident;

6.1.4. All sentinel events, involving any individual receiving" services under this
contract, to the Department as follows:

Bi-State Primary Care Associalion, Inc. Exhlbil A - Amendnienl #6 Contractor Initials
8/3172023
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:6.1.4.1. "Sentinel events'" as defined by the NH DHHS Sentinel Event
Reporting and Review policy, is an unexpected occurrence
involving'death or serious physical or psychological-injury; oMhe
risk thereof. Serious injury specifically includes loss of limb or

,  function .(https://\Awv/.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/policy.pdf).
■  All sentinel events hall be reported, as follows;

6.1.4.1.1. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
immediate verbal notification of the event to the

Department, which shall include:

6.1.4.1.1.1. The reporting individual's narfie, phone
number, and organization;

6.1.4.1.1.2. Name and date of birth of the individual(s)
involved in the event;

6.1.4.1.1.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

6.1.4.1.1.4. Description of the event, including what,
■  when, where, how the event happened, and

other relevant-information, as well as the
identification of any other individuals
involved;

6.1.4.1.1.5. Whether the police yyere ihyplved d_ue to a
crime or suspected crime;- and

6.1.4.1.1.6. The identification of any rriedia that reported
■  the event..

6.1.4.1.2. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor
shall submit a cornpleted "Sentinel Event Reporting
Form" (February 2017), available at
httDs://www!dhhs.nh.qov/dcbcs/documents/rep6rtinq-
form.docx to-the Department; and

6.1.4.1.3. Additional information on the event that is-discovered
after filing the forrfi in Section 6.1.4.1.2 above shall be
reported to the Department, in writing,,as it becomes
available or upon request of, the Department.

6.2. The Contractor shall report all Critical and Sentinel events as outlined in
Subsection 6.1, to other a-gencies as required by law.

6.3. The Contractor shall submit, and ensure all Sites submit, additional ,information
regarding Critical and' Sentinel events if required and as requested by the
Department. os

7. Deliverables
' V

Bl-Stale Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A-Amendments Conlfactor Initials.^
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7.1. The Contractor shall provide GOpJes of the executed agreements described In
Section 2.1.1, to the Department within five (5) business days of fully executing
the documents, Each'agreement and renewal is subject-to Department review"
and approval.

'7.2. The, Contfactdr shall provide a written work plan, vyhich describes the process
for ensuring the completion of. all aspects of the Scope of Services (Section 2),
Staffing (Section 3), and Training (Section 4) as outlined in this Contract within

■  thirty (3,0) days of Governor and Executive Council approval pf the Contract. The
work plan shall be subject to review and approval by the Department.

7.3, The Contractpr shall provide monthly status reports based on work plan
-  progress to, include," but not be limited.to:

. 7:3.1. Staff retained to support MOUD at each Site;

\ 7.3.2. Number of prescribers waivered to prescribe buprenorphine at each Site;

7.3.3. Outreach activities conducted, by the Contractor and by each "Site;

7.3.4. Policies and practices established;

7.3.5. Encountered and foreseeable issues, along with, actuaf or suggested
•' resolutions; •

7.3.6. Changes, made to the initial work plan;

7.3.7. " Training and technical assistance provided to or needed by each Site; and

7.3.8. Other progress to date: '
-  I

7.3.9. The Contractor "shall report on and submit all -data points in Section 5. as
requested by the Department, monthly, and send the results in de-
identified, aggregate form to the Department using a Department-approved
format.

>y. . /

7;4. The Contractor^rtiust submit.a final report to the Department within 45 days of.
cbnclusipn of the contract which shall include, but is" not limited to:

7.4.1. A'summary of information detailing progress made toward completion of
all aspects of the Scope of Services, including challenges encountered and
actipns taken;

7.4.2. Total of de-identified and aggregate data by Site and by program as a
whole;

■7.4.3.^ Demographics of participants;
7.4.4. Nuniber of patjpnts receiving MOUD prior to program implementation

compared .to number of patients receiving MOUD «at end of Contract,
including denriographic (e.g., 'gender,, age, race, ethnicity) and o.y^k^e:
data as appropriate; '

B'l-State Primary Cere Associalion. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials ^
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7.4.5. Training and technical assistance provided; and

7.4.6. Other progress to date.

7.5. The Contractor'Shall submit the sustairiabilityplan, described in Section 2.M.8,
to the Department for review and approval, at least three' (3) months prior to the
end of this contract.

8. Performance Measures , /

'8.1. The Contractor .shall collaboi^ate with the Department'to enhance contract
management, improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful .outcomes.

9. State Ppipid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

Ttie Contractor .shall, establish forrnal information sharing :and ■ referr.al
agreements vyith the IDoorways in compliance with-all applicable confidentiality
laws, iricludirig 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded
with SORsresources.

i9'."2. The Contractor shall ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doorways are:

9.2.1. Co.mpleted and documented in the individual's file; and -c

9.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as o.eeded for paymerit of
invoices for services proy[ded through SOR-funded irtitiatiyes.

'9.3. The Contractor shall ensure individuats receiving services, rendered from SOR
funds, have a dpcumehted history or current diagnoses of OpiOid Use Disorder
or,Stimulant Use Disorders (OUb/S'timUD) or are at risk for such.

j;; 19.4. The .Contractor shall coordinate coniplelion, of Government Performance
Results Act.fGPRA) initial interview and associated folloyv.-ups at stx,(6j moriths
and discharge for individuals referenced previously.

9.4.-1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed plan vyithin thirty (30) days of contract
effective date for ensuring GpRA completion for all clients receiving SOR.
funding.

•9.5. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR;grant funds are not used to purchase,
prescribe, or provide cannabis or for providing .treatment'using cannabis. The
Contractor shall ensure:

9.5.1. Treatrrient in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD.

9.5.2. Giant funds are ript provided to any individual who or organization that
provides or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance use
or mental health disorders.

of9.5.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Menrioranc
Understanding that receive SOR funding.

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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9.6. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals, utilizing
SCR funding.

9.7. If the- Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall^ provide a
test strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation'.
The.Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes.'but is not limited to:'

9.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips; *' _

■9,7.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and ■
.9.7.3.- Other key data as requested by the Department.

9.8. The Contractor shall provide services as referenced in Section 2.1.1. to eligible
individuals who:

■9.8.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers., including th.e individual's
. primary cafe provider;

9.8.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders: or
9.8.3. Are. bh medications and are taking those medications as prescribed

, regardless ofthe class of medication.
9.9. 'The Contractor shall .ensure: individuals who refuse to consent to information'

sharing with the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR,funding.
9.10. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent'to information

sharing witb the Doorways do hot receive any additional services utilizing SOR
funding:

9.11. The Cjontfactor shall collaborate with the Department and other SORTunded
ContractoVs. as.requested and directed by the Department, to irnprdve-GPRA
collection.

9.12. The-Contractor shall comply with all appropriate Departmerit, State of NH,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), and
other Federal terrns.^ condjtibns. and requirements, and as amended, and shall
collaborate with the Department to "understand the aforesaid.

eh.
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New Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for o»ch budget period.

Contractor Name: 6/<Srafe Primary Care Association, Inc.

Budget Request for: Facilitating Integrated Medication for OUD, Postpartum and
Parenting Women

Budget Period SFY24-(September 29. 2023-June 30, 2024)

Indirect Cost.Rale (If.appticable) 1.33%

Line Item
Program Cost -

Funded by DHHS

;.Pr6gram.Cost-
Contractor Share/-

■ Match

TOTAL Program
Cost

$52,985

1. Salary & Wages

$0 $52,985

2. Fringe Benefits $7,946 $0 $7,948

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment $0 $0 iO

5.(a) Supplies' Educational $0 $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab SO $0 $0

5.(c) Suppries - Pharmacy $0 $0

S.fd) Supplies • Medical iO JO $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $695 JO $695

6. Travel $50 $0 $50

7. Software $0 $0 $0

6. (a) Olher»Marketing/Communications $0 $0 $0

6, (b) OtherEducation and Training SO $0 SO

8. (c) Other' Other (please specify)
Olher (please specify) Professional Development $4.760 $0 $4.780

Olher (please specify) Occupancy S12,989 $0 $12.989

Olher (please specify) SO $0 so

Olher (please specify) $0 $0 $0

9. Subcontracts $583.000 $0 $583.000

Total Direct Costs $662,447 $0 $662,447

Total Indirect Costs $8,803 $0 $8,803

TOTAL $671,250 SO $671,250

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Date.
8/31/2023
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New Hampshire Departmertt of Health and Human Services

Complato ono budget form for etch budget peWod. •'

Contractor Name: Bl-Stete Primary Caro Association, Inc.

Budget Request for: Facilitating Integrated Medication for OUD, Postpartum and
Parenting Women

Budget Period SFy25-fJu//f, 2024-Sep(emt)er 29, 2024J

>  Irtdlrect Cost Rate (if applicable) 2.61%

ILIneltorh' •- . ' •
•' • 'i,

Program Cost -
Funded by DHHS

Program Cost -
ContractorShare/

Match;

TOTAL Program
Cost

1, Salary & Wages

$19,266 $0 $19,266

2. Fringe Benefits $2,693 $0 $2,893

3. Consultants • * $0 $0 .. $0

4. Equipment $0 $0 SO

5.(a) Supolies - Educationel $0 $0 $0

5.(b) Supolies • Lab $0 $0 •  $0

S.fc) SuDDlies-Pharmacy .r $0 $0 ■  $0

5.(d) Supolies - Medical $0 $0 $0

5.(e) Supolies Office ' $708 i: $0 •  $708

6. Travel $50 $0 $50

7. Software $0 $0 .$0

8. (a) Other-Madceting/Communications $0 .SO $0

8. Other - Education and Training $0 $0 $0

8 (r.) Other-Other (please soecifv)
■Other (plaasa specify) Professional Develoomenl $5,175 so $5,175

Other (please specify) Occupancy $4,267 $0 $4,267

Other (please specify) $0 •  $0 $0

Other (please specify) SO $0 $0

9. Subcontracts S185.250 $0 $185,250

Total Direct Costs $217,629 $0 $217,629

Total Indirect Costs $6,121 so $6,121

TOTAL $223,750 $0 $223,750

Pago 2 0(2

Contractor Inllials

Date^
5/31/2023
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NK 02301
603.27J-9544 l-m452-334S Ext 9S44

F«i: 003-37l:4332 TOD Amti: i-800-735-2964 www.dhh*.QK.(ev

November 28. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Chnstopher T. Sununu
and.the Honorable Council

,State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroact^e, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Bi-St^e
Primary Care Association. Iiw. iyC#l66695-B00l), Bow, NH to facilitate certain providers to
deliver' integrated medication treatment for pregnant, postpartum and parenting women, iby
increasing the price limitation by $895,000 from $2,151,692 to $3,046,692 and by extending the
completion date; from September 29, 2022 to September 29, 2023, effective retroactjve to
September 29,2022 upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 6, 2019. iteni^
tflO. amended on January 22,2021, item #19. artiended on September 15,2021, Item #16J,:arKl''
most recently amended on June 29,2022. item #23.

Funds are. available iri the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are
anticipate to be available for State Fiscal Year 2024, with the authority to adjust budget line
'items within the price limitation and encumbrarices between state fiscal years through ^the
Bu^et Office, if heeded and justified.
05^95-92-920510^26590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. ,HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH QIV. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,

State
Fiscal
Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increased
^Decreased}

Amount

Revised
Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92052559
$600,000 $0 $600,000

Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000

Tht Depertmtntof HfoUh oniS Humon Str\>ictt',Miu\on ii U>}o{t\ communitUi onHfomUin
in providing opportunltUs for clliunt lo a^ieve htaUh and indtprndenct.
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His Excoliency, Governor Chitst^iher T. SunuAu
end the Honorable Cound)

Page 2 of 3

05-9S-92'920S10-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES.
80R GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Claaa /

Account
Cla^ Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increaaed

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040

$156,945 ■  ■'$q $166,945

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

prog Svc 92057040
$300,000 $0 $300,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92057046
$522,374 $0 $522,374

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92057046
$174,124 $0 $174:.124

2022 074-500585
.GrantsTof

.PubAsst and
Rei

92057048
$348,249 $0 $348,249

2022 074-500585
Grants for

Pub A^t and
Rel

92057048
$50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057058

$0 $671,250 $671,250

2024 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057058

•  $0 $223,750 $223,750

Subtoiat $t951i692 $695,000 $2,446;692
- Total $2,161,692 $895,000 $3,046,692

.3.

EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive because the Deparlmenl was notified by.the Federal.awarding
agency on September 23. 2022 of the availabiirty of- funding beyond the current contract
cornpletlon date of September 29. '2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal awarding
agency, the Department was unable to finalize the amendments and funding details arxl present
this request to the Governor and Council prior to the contracts expiring.

This request is Sol© Source because the Departmerit Is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion dates and there are no renewal options available. .Due to the limited
tlmeframe between the funding notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract
expiration date, the beparlment was not able to re-procure for these services. Ariy delays or,gaps
in service provision rnay result in reduced or loss of access to services and supports for Individuals

.in need of these critical.services.

The purpose,of this request Is for the Cohtraclof to continue to facilitate the participation
'of Federally Qualified Heal^ Centers {FQHCs) to provide medications for substance use disorder
(MSUD), and.an array of necessary supports to pregnant, postpartum, and parenting people with
opioid use disorder (OUD). along ,With their newborn and infant children.
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The Contrador shall continue the currently contracted role as a facilitating organization
(FO) to support at least three (3) subcontracted FQHCs to increase their/capacity to provide and
to deliver comprehensive integrated MSUD services and supports. The'Fb will provide~project
management,.; organizational support, and ensure compliance for themselves arid all
subcontracted sites with contract. State, and Federal regulations and standards.

The subcontracted FQHCs will provide integrated MSUD. meaning that not only will
pregn^ant.,^slpdrtum. and parenting people with OUD receive necessary MSUD. they will also
receive additional targeted. Integrated services such as: obstetrieal/gynecploglcal care; Neonatal
Abstinence Syndrome care; childbirlh and parenting education; empioyment support and
assistance'with applying for and obtaining benefits appropriate'for pr^nant, postpartum, and
.parenting people such as enrolling in Medicaid; food and housing eenrices; transportation; and
childcare. MSUd Is the use of medications, in combination wHh counseling and behavioral
therapies,when nece^ry.

Iri addition to contihuirig to.support providers in delivering cornprehensive integrated
MSUD services and supports for the target population, the Contractor will collaborate with local
and regional public: health and provider networtis, includirig the Doorways and recovery
community organizations, to align and coordinate substance misuse treatment and recovery
support ̂ rvices.^

Approximately 75 individuals will be served September 30, 2022 to September 29,2023.

The' additional funding wth this amendment shall go' towards supporting additional staff
for reporting, additiorial supplies, community coordinatiori, and reestablishmerit of a.previpus
subcontracted_FQHC.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, post-partum, and
parenting people in New Hampshire with OUD and their Infants and children may not receive the
tii^atment necessary ,to achieve and maintain recovery and may also; not receive Important
parenting-specific-services'and Supports which could Improve the mothers' healih and wejibeing
as well las that of their infants and children

■  Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal.Funds: Assistance Listing.Number.#93.788. FAIN #1H79T1085759.

In the event that the Fectoral Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support,this pr^ram.

Respectfully submitted,

M

,1 1'.^ c

Lqri A. Shibmette
Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHDU:

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HDMAN SERVICES

DiVjmN FOR BEHAVIORAL H^LW

IW PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH OJMf '
mmyoAA i«)iMS2-334seit9S44

.F«i;6a3-27MU2 TDD Aacis: I-SOO-7JM964 m.dhhi.nb.sov

June 2. 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council •

:State House

Concord. New Hatri^hi^ 03301

REQUESTED ACTfON

Authorize'the bepartment of Health and.Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing (.contract yrtth Bi-Stale Primary Care Association. Inc. (VC#i66695-B001)
Bow, NH..tp facilitate.certain proyiders to:deliver integrated medication treatment for pregnant,
postpartum and parenting women, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price
(imitation by $50,0(^. from $2^101.692 to $2,151,692 and exterxfing Ihe^completton date from
June 30,-2022. to Septerhber-29, 2022, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds:.

'  I

The original corilract was approved by Governor and Council on November 6, 2019, item
fSftO, amended with Govem'or'and Council approval on January 22. 2021, item #19, and most
recently arnended v^.h Gbviemor arid Council approval on September 15;'2p21, Hem #16J.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with the
authority Ip adjustbudget line items .within the price limitation and encurnbrances.tetvy.een state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

OS-95*92-9205ld-26590(Wd HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,
STR GRANT

SUte

Fiscal
Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Numter
V

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget
A*:

2020 102-5007^1 ■ Contracts for
Prog Svc

.92052559
$600,000 $0 i$6QO.OOO

)
Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000

Tht [kpOfUntnlolMioUh and Uumon ̂rvictt'hiiuion Itto'jQih cemmuAi'tici and famiiin
':in pro\ndlr^ofiporl»r\i\itt (d''ci\iitnf ic oeAi<u«"A«>f<^ one# indipi'ndinit.
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0S>92>92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES.
SOR GRANT

State

Fiscal
Tear

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Arhount

Revised
Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040

$156,945 - " ■ $0 $156,945

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
■92057040

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2021 102-500731
Contra cts.for

Prog Svc 9207046
$522,374 $P $522,374

2022 102-500731
Cofitra.cts for

Prog Svc 92057046
$174,124 $0 $174,124

2022 074-500585
Grants for

P'ub Asst and
Pel

92057048
$346,249 .  $0

«  f

$348,249

2023 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057046

$0 $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $1.50,1.692 '$50,000 $1,551,692

*-*
Total $2,101,692 $60,000 $2,151,692

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue facilitating the participation of certain Federally
Qualifted Health Centers (FQHCs) to provide medications for, substance use disorder (MSUD),
■fOfmerly referred to as mediation assisted treatihent. and an array of.rj^ssary supports to
pregrianl. postparjum, arid parenting wprnen diagnosed with opioid use disorder (QUO), along
with their newborn and infant cliildren.

The Contractor shall continue the currently contracted role as a facilitating organization
(FO) to support at least two (2), subcontracted FQHCs to increase their capacity to provide and to
deliver comprehensive Integrated f*4SUP 30rvices\and supports. The' FO will provide projert
management, organ'izational support", and ensure compliance for themselves .and all
subcontracted sites with contract, State, and Federal.reguiations and standards. .

The subcorilractad FQHCs will provide integrated MSUD. rrieanlng that not only will
pregnant, poslpartum. and parenting worhen diagnosed with CUD receive necessary MSUD. they
will also receive additional target^. Iritegraled services such as: obstetri.cat/gynecojogical car^
Neohalal Abstinence Syndrom'e care; childbirth end parenting education; employment support,
and asslstahco wiih'applying for and obtaining benefits appropriate for pregnant, postparturn. anqparentlrig womeh.su'ch' as enrolling in Medicaid: food and housing seivices; transportation, and
childcare' MSUD is the use of medications, In combination with counseling and behavioral,
therapies. ^ provide a "whole-patienf approach to the treatment of OUD.
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^  In addition to continuing to support providers in delivering.cpmprehensrve integrated-
MStJD services arid supports for the target population, the Contractor will coilaborate with local
and regional public health arid provider natworVs, including the Doorways and recovery
community organizations, to aligri and coordinate substance misuse treatment and recovery
support services.

Approximately 70 individuats will be served from July 1, 2022 to September 29, 2022.

The Department will contiriue to monitor contracted services by reviewing reports, surveys
and other necessary data; critical end sentinel event reports: and performar^ce measures
indicating the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services under this agreement.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of the original coritrad. the parties have the.option to extend the
agreement for up to two (2) additional years, corttingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor ar^ Council approval. The Department
is ex'ercistng its option to renew services for the remaining three (3) months of available renewal.
In part, this declsldri Is ba$0d on the fact that the subcontracted FQHCs have been integral
partners and suppbrts for the Regional Doorway system arid continuing funding'these contracts
wiiraypid creating criticdl sen/ice gaps.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, pbst-partum. and
parenting women in New Hampshire diagnos^ with pUD and their infants and children may not
receive the treatment necessary to overcome their addiction end may also nj)t receive important
parer^ting-specific services and supports which coiild improve the mothers' health and welll^ing
as well as that of their infants and. children. Not receiving these needed wrvicee could lead to
serious health and social consequences, including overdose, incarceration, or death for the
mother; involvement with bCYF, vyhlch may include termination of custody; and lincreased
likelihood of being unsheltered and/or unemployed.

' Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. Assistance Listing #93.788. FAIN #H79TIO03326.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support,this program.

Respectfully submitted, '

Lori A. Shibinerte
Commissioner •
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE . -

DEPARTMErrr OF HEALTH AND HDMAN SERVICES

DmSiON FOR BEHA VtORALHEALTH

129 PLEASANT STRECT. CONCORD, NH 03301
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August 26, 2021

His Exooliency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte .Cound!

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

requested action

Authorize, the Department of Heaim and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heatth;
to amend an existing contract with 6i-State Primary Care Assodation. Inc. (\/C#166695:6001);
Bow. NH to facilitate c^ain providers to deirver Integrated medication treatment for pregniarit.
postpartum and parenting women by exercising a renewal option by increasing the price llrhltation
by $348,249 from $1,753,443 to $2,101,692 and by extending the cbmpletbn date.ffi^
September 29. 2021 to June 30, 2022 effective upon GoyerrH)r arid Coundl a^^val. 100%
Federal Funds.

the ordinal contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 6, 20i9. item
#10 a*hd most recisntly emended with Governor and Council approval on January 22,.2021, item
#19.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Yedr 2022, with-the autlioriV
to adjust budget line Items within the price (Imitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Ofifioe, if needed.an6 justified.
Oi5-95*92-920510-26590000 HEALTH AND SCKIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOiL SERVICES.
SIR GRANT

State ;

Fiscal
Year

Class t

Acbcunt
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget.

2020 102-500731.
Contracts for

Prog Svc
920S2559 $600,000 $0 $600,000

i'l

Subfpfaf 5600.000 50 $$00,COO

05-92^92-920510^70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUBflAN SVtS
DEPT. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES.
SCR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year-

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Currerit

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revise

fUDieporlJn«ni9/Ht(ilthond Human Sirvictt'MiisUm ii'iofain eommunitia'ohil fdmlM
in pravidini ppfidrtunltia /ar.citiuns to ocMm health onH independence.
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2020
p::

•  V

102-500731
Contracts for

PrpbSvc 92057040
$156,945 SO $156,945

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
progSvc 92057040

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2021 102-500731
Cbht/acts for

ProgSvc
9207046

$522,374 $0 $522,374

2022 102-500731
Cohtr&cts for

ProgSvc
92057046

$174,124 ■■ w $.174,124

2022 074-500585

Grants for

Pub As^ and
Rel

92057048 $0 $346,249 $348,249

SubMeJ . $1,153,443 $348,249 S1601;692

•• Total $1,763,443 $^,249 $2,101,692

EXPLANATION

The purpb^M bfthlsrequMt is to continue facilitating the participation of certain Federally
Qualified Health Centere-and hospitals to provide medication assisted treatment and an array of
neceasary eupporls to pregnant, postpartum, and parenting women diagnoded with opipld use
disorder. , ^

The Contractor will euppbri a minimum of (3) Federally Qualified Health Centers and/or

Assisted Treatmeht:8en/fces and support for pregnant, postpartum. and parenting .women with
opioid use disorder, along ̂ h their rrewbom and infant children.

tntegiraied Medication Assisted Treatment aervices are a criticat component to address
the oplold crisis In New Hamp^lre. The progYams supported by this contract are evidence-based
options that have expanded the. State's capacity to provide treatment and recovery supports (b
women, as well as their infants and children affected by their mother's use'of opioids. ■

<|^proxlmately 500 In'dtvlduals will be served from September 30, 2021 to June 30,2022.

In addition to cpntinulhg suppoil to providers in delivehrig comprehensive intisgrated
medication assisted IrealrTiefit.aervloes and supports for the target population, the Contractor will
collaborate with local.and regional nelworttsfincluding the Doorways, to align aervic©?.

The Departrnent wiil continue to moriitor contracted services by reviewing reports; auryeys
and other hocessary data; critical and sentinel event reports; arwJ perlomianoe measures
Indicating the effectiveness of the; Contractor,and the delivery of services under this agreement.
The Contractor wrill: ' ^

>• Ensure jlhat 56% of women referred to tlw program who consent to treatment and
qualify based on crinlcal evaluation will enter opioid use disorder treatment as
reported by the

• Ensure- 76% of women Identified by American Society of Addiction M^iclne
criteria as in heed of a higher level of care will be referred to ffeatment servioes in.
ordbr. to incfbase referral of pregnant and-postpartum women to Oplold Use
blsprder treatni'enl providers as reported by the Sites; and

<.V'

f.
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v;; • Attempt to lower positive uhne dru9 dcreens for illicit substances for pregnant
women serv^ in this prngram by frve percent (5%) through State Fiscal Year
2022. as roportetJ by th'e Sites.

As referenced in ExhibrtjC-l of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up Id two (2)'additiorial years, contingent uppn eatisfadpry delivery of services.

. available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor arid Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for nine (9) months-of the one (1) available. year
remaining.

Shoiild the Gdvemor and Council not authprtze this request, pregnant, poctpartum, and
parentir)9-wpmen ;in New Hampshire diagnos^ with opiold use disorder and their Infants and
children may r\o\ recisive the services and supports necewary to overcome their addiction, which
could negatively affod the rnothers' hcatlh as well as me health of their Infants and children.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing #93.768. FAIN # H79TI,08.3326.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer availabte. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program;

>  Respectfully.

(

LoriA.'Shlbinette

'Commissioner

V'i,

f;.
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Januarys. 2021

Kia Excellency. Governor Chriatopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable CpuncI)

State Houae
Concord. New Hempshire 03301

REqupSffDApTloW
Auihodze tbe Depaimeni of. Health and HumanServioea.'DK^ion for Behavioral He^h,

.10 amend an existing Retroactive, ̂ fe ̂urce contract with 6>-State Primary Care Aaaodatiori,
Inc. (Vendor 016d6O&-BOO1); Bow, NH to provide facititalion^for integrated.medication .treatment
for pregnant, pdstpa/tum end parenting women organizaliorts by increasing the price limitation by
S2&3.443 from $1,500,000 to $ 1.753.443 ar^ by extending (he completion date from September
30, 2020 to September 29, 2021 effective rsirosctive to September 30. 2020 upon.Govemor and
Pounclt approval. 100% Federal. Fur^s. <

The c^lnal contract was.epprpved by Governor ar^ Cour»cjl on November 6,2019. (Item
#10). - , - - ,

Fui^ are available in the following accounis for Stale Fisc^ Year 2021. and are
anticipated .10 be .available in State Fiacai Yoare.2022. upon the ayal.i'ability and continued,
appropriation of furids In the future operating budget, with the euthprity to adjust fcudget l(r>e items
within the price llrhitatipn and ericunibranpee between stato fiscal yeam through the.Bubget Office,
If needed end juBtlTied. "

05-95-92-920816-2559 HEALTH AND HUMAN 8ERV1CE8. BEHAViORAL HEALTH-OIV,
bureau of drug and alcohol. 8TR grant

Stato-
Flscal
Year

Claao /
Acco.uht

J

Ctatro THIe
Job

Number

.Current
Budget

Increaoed

(Oecreaeed)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731

ri.

Contracts for ■

. Program
Services

92052559 .'^,000 $0 . $600,000

V- -
Si/btotef $660,000 56 $600,000

Th« Htollh ond Human S4nAtt*'Miuich u la Join nmmunilUt on^ famOirf
in prouidi^ dppOfiunllUt/o'' tiiUfn»to o<SlrM.htollS ond indtfitndtnot.
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Mt.EAOeOeixy. Govomof CMstpjihdr
•nd me Honorable CouhoD

PegeJefJ ,,

0&^B-eZ-e205ia-7040 health and human services, behavioral health div.
BUREAU Of ORUO AND ALCOHOL, SOR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Cjase./
Account t

Class Tftto
Job

Number

Current

. Budget

Increased

(Decrpasad)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Servtoes

92057040
$600,000 $(443,055)- $156,045

2021 102:500731

Contracts for
Program
Setyloee

92057040

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Program
Services

9205704^
$522,374 ,  $522,374

2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Prbgrerri
Services

92057046
$174,124 $174,124

}•' Suttotol $00,000 $253,443 $f,f53,443

Total ̂ $1,600,000 $263,443 $1,763,443

EXPLANATION

this rBquest ls Rotroactive because sufRciohl funds in Slate Fiscia) Year 2021 were not
availaMe in.the o^reting budget considering (he grant amount awarded, and duel to delay by the
iSubstance Abuse, and Mental'Heafth Services Administration In approvir^ Now Hampshlre'e
'reduests for continu^ State >Opioid Response Grant funding the efforts to add the elate,
appropriations were defefrk^ This request is Solo Source because the.cdrrtracl wes originally
•epp>bved as sole source and MOP 150 requires any subs^uent amendrfvcnla to bo labeled ̂
sole sou w. The.Contracior was Identified as the orgeniiation for (his scope of worl^ based on its
role and welLestablished professional and technical assistanod relatioriihlps with tfte State's
Federally Qualified Health Centers end hospitals, wt^ict) allows services to be established quickly
iond efficterrtyin ttie ter^.ted g^raphlc areas.

The purpose of this request is to continue factlftating the paitldpstiori of Federally Qualrf'ed
Health Centers end hospitalii'tb provide medication assisted treatnjorit end an array of rieceesary
supports to pregnant, poslpartum. arid parenting women diagnosed withdplold use disorder. The
Contractor shall oorrtinue to support at least five (5) Federally Qyalrfied Hearth Centers.ar^of
hospitals to increase their capacity to provide and to deHver comprehensive integrated Medication
[Assisted Treabnent, services and supports for pregnant, postpartum. and parenting women with
oploid use disorder.-along with Iheirnewbom and infant chiWron.

These t^ces ere needed due to the opiold crisis in Now Hornpshire. The programs
supported by tHIs cbntract'efe'evidence-based onions that have expanded the State's capacity
jto provide treatrfiont and recovery support to pregnant, post-partum, and parendng womef> with
pploid use disefd.sfa, as wei) as'thelr ihfahls and children effected by their mother's use of opiolds.
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!tn addrtion to continuing the' facilitation of the eigiansion of medicatlcm asslatod treatment
sefvloee and supp^rta for the target population, the Contractor wilt collaborate with local and
regional rtetwortca, including the Doofwa]^ to align aervtcea.

the Department will continue monitortng the effeciivene&e of the Contractor and the
dellvei^ of aarvioee under (his agreement using the fdivmng performance measures:

•  The Cdntmctor ehall ehMre that 50% -of >Momen referred to the progrism iMtio
dorrsent to traatment and quaDfy based on dinicai evaluation will enter opiokf use
dmorder treatrrierit as reported by the Sites.

•  ihte Contractor ehall ensure 75% of women identified by American ̂ octety of
i^iction fMedlclne crtterto as in need of a higher levet of care will be referred (6
treatment Mrvioes In order to Increase referral of pregnant and postpartum women
to Opioid tise Diaordar treatment prov'idera as reported by the'Sttes.

•  The Contractor shall attempt to lower positive urtne drug screens for Illicit
substancM for pregnant women 8;erved in this program ty five percent (5%) through
State Fiscal Year 2021, as repofled by the Sites.

As refe/enced h Exhibit C*1 of the ortglnsl contract, the psrtieo tiave the option to extend
the agreemant for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery eervtces,
aVailaWe fuhdir^. agreement of (ho parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
Is exerciaing its'option to renew servioes for one (t) year of iho two (2) yeare evaitabte.

Should the Gdvempr and Coundl not euthorizo this request pregnant, post-^um. and
parenting wmen in Nw Hampshire diagnosed with cptold use disorder artd their Infants and
chiaren "may not receive the support .necessary to overcome their addiction' which could
n^atively Impact their hoatth and the health of thai; infants and children. ,,

Airee served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. CFDA #93.788, FAIN TIWt085.

In the eycni that the Federal Funds become no longer available, Ger>er8l Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnstte
Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAWSHERE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTM AND HUMAN SERVICES

OiyWONFOX BEHAyJORAL HEALTH
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October 22. 2019

10

rts ExcflllccKy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the.Honoreb^ Counoi

State House. . . .
CorKOfd. New Harripshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Hcatih,an(J Human Sewices, Division for Behavioral Health, to enter .
trdo 'd 'fiole aourco. ogreemeni wilh Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc. (Vendor d #166695-B001).
525 Clinton Street; Bow, NH 03304. l6 provide, facilitation for integral^ medication assisted trealrnent
for pregnant, postparlum and parenting women orgenizalions in an amount not to exceed $1,500,000
cKecUve upon Governor and Executive Cour^cB ap^ovai. through September 30. 2020. 100% Federal
Funds.

Funds to support this request ate available inthefoUowitig accourit{s) for Stale Fiscal Years (SFY)
2020 and 2021 opon lhe availability and.coruimred appropriation of funds In Ihe future.opiating budget,
with authority to adjust amounts within Ifw price limitalion and adjust erwjrpbrances between Stale Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
0S-i5-92-9265i0-2M9 HEALTH AND HyfinAN SERVICES. BEHAVIOWL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF
DRUG AND ALCOHOL,.STRGFIANT

SFY Class/Account , Claes Title Job Numt>er Total Amount

'  2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052559 $600,000

Subfofof S600.000

'

OS-95-92-920,
OF DRUG AN

nb-7040 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
D ALCOHOL, SOR GRANT

oiv, bureau

Stato

Rscat

Year

Ciass/Account .Class Titio Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $600,000

2021 . 102-500731 Cpniracts for Prog Svc 02057040 $300,000

• Subforsf , $900,000

..

Total $1,600,000



DocuSign Envelope ID: 68WQ552-CCAe:4A68:BADj.B6FBOiFC^^ ^ .A

doeuSign Envelope ID: 6E96p43B-6^3-4SA8'9l6»<46BA«45)2496

OocvS^nenv«hjpe(0-.4EM2E&A-BM»^EE>«>AM9IA^}CKD

s?

Mh e>cC«llefCy.Oo«remof,Chrt»lophe».T. Sungno ' ' .
and (M Honorottfe Council ■/>..
P«Qe2ol3

•?;

, EXPLANATION

This request is sole source due (6 the ilmiied amouni of time remaining to implement services
utiiizir>9 the federal State Opioid Response furtdirtg within the grant time limits. 6i*Sl,dte Pn'mary Care
Association (Contractor) was identified as the organization (or this scope of work based on their roles
and weD-estabtished professional, and technical assistance relationships with'the Stale's Federaily
Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs^'and hospitals, which win alloy# services to be established quickly and
efficiently in the targeted geographic areas..

'The purpose of this request is to (aciiiiate the panicipatlon of FQHCs af>d hospit^s to provide
madicelibn assisted treatment (MAT) and en array of necessary supports to pregr3ant, postparlum. and
parerMir^ wonien diagnosed with o'pioid use disorder (OUD).-The Contractor shall enter [nto agreements
with at least five .(S) FQHCs and/or hospitals to increase thoir capacity to provide and to deliver
comprehensive Inl'egraled .Medicaiion Assisted Treatmeni (IMAT) services and supports for pregnant,
postparlum..arrd parenting wom.eri with OUD. along with their newborn ar\d infant;Children. ,

These services are nceded'due 'iothe urgent nature dl the opidid crisis in New Harhpshire. The
prograrhs supported by this contract are evidericc-bas.ed options that will expand the Slates cap'acily Id
provide lreaimer\t and rccove^. support to pregriant. posl-partum. arid parenting women with ppioid use
disorders, as weD as their infants and children affected by their mother's use of ppioids. -

*' The Contractor will faciliiale the expansion of iMAT services and cupporls for this targeted
population and collaborale with local and regional networks, including the Doorways' to align services.
The Cdniractor will'provide support to FQHCs thai are interested In developing, or enhancing pxisting
capacity-to deliver-these critical services in their regions.

the bepariment wiii monltor ihe effectiveness of inc Contractor and.the.deCvcry of eeryices under
this agreement using the foilowlrig pcrfonmance measures:

•  The Contractor shall ensure that fi fty percent (50%) of wornen referred to ttie program" who
consent lo.lrealmani andiquali^,based on cJlnicarevaluallon will e.nlcr QUO ircalrncnl as
reported.by IheSiles.

•  The'CoritractOf shall ensure seventy-five percent (76%) of women identified by AISAM
.•?. criteria as in.r^eed of.a.higher level of care will be rVfenr^ to trealment_senriccs in order

to increase referraUof pfcgriani and postparturn .wpmen to OUp t.reatmer^t providers, as
reported by ihe.Sites.

•. The Contractor shall attempi to lower positive urine drug scnecns for illicit substances for
,  ■ .pregnant women served in ihis program by five percent (5%) from Stale Fiscal Year 2O20

to Siaic Fiscal Year 2021, as reported by the Sites.
As referenced in the Exhibit .C-.1 of Ihis contract, the parties have lhe option lo extend coniract

services for up to two (2) additional ye'af(s), coritingem upori salisfactdry delivery of services, availableV. funding, agreement of the-parties and approval d the Governor and Executive Council.
Should the .Governor and Executive Council not aulhorizo Ihis request, pregnant, post-partum.

and parenting vvdrheri.in New Hampshire diagnosed wilh opiokJ use diso.rdcr and ihcir infants and
children may not receive the support necessary to overcome iheir ad.diction which could negatively impact

i  . their health and Ihe'healih of Iheir"|n'f3f}l5 end children. ,
Area served: Sialowide.

■Source of Funds: '-100% Federal Funds from Department of Heallh S Human Svs, Substance
■ Abuse & Mental .Health iSvs- Admin^ Center for Subslance Abuse Trcalmorit, CFQAffSa.zea/

FAIN#Tl08l685andFAIN<fTI060246. .
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Jn Ihc even! that the Federal Fur^s become no longer dvailaWB. General Funds wlii not be
requested 16 suppdirt ihis'progrBm.

ftespectfuUy^ubmined.

frey A. Meyers
' Commissioner

y/
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